
PLANNING COMMISSION 
Agenda 

September 10, 2019 

City Center South 

1001 11th Avenue 

1:15 p.m.  

I. Call to Order

II. Approval of minutes for meeting held on August 27, 2019

III. A public hearing to consider a request for the Promontory Imagine School, 2nd Filing,

Preliminary and Final PUD (Planned Unit Development) on a 144.67-acre site

Project Name: Promontory Imagine School, 2nd Filing, Preliminary and Final PUD 

Case No.: PUD2019-0010 and PUD2019-0011 

Applicant: Tagg Inc., on behalf of the City of Greeley  

Location: South of 16th Street, east of Promontory Parkway, north of 

Highway 34 Bypass 

Presenter: Marian Duran, Planner II 

IV. A public hearing to consider a request to amend the Preliminary Plan to add fire

stations, schools and recreational area uses on a 144.67-acre site within the

Promontory PUD (Planned Unit Development) Areas F, L and M only

Project Name: Promontory Preliminary PUD, Areas F, L, M 1st Amendment 

Case No.: ZON2019-2011 

Applicant: Tagg Inc., on behalf of the City of Greeley 

Location: South of 16th Street, east of Promontory Parkway, north of Highway 

34 Bypass 

Presenter: Marian Duran, Planner II 

1



V. A public hearing to consider a request for a Final PUD (Planned Unit Development)

to allow a restaurant use at a 1.08-acre site located north of Centerplace Drive, south

of 24th Street, and east of 46th Avenue

Project Name: Greeley Sports Bar Final PUD 

Case No.: PUD2019-0005 

Applicant: Robert Molloy, Planscapes 

Location: North of Centerplace Drive, south of 24th Street, east of 46th Avenue 

Presenter: Brittany Hathaway, Planner III 

VI. A public hearing to consider a request to rezone approximately 5.50 acres of property

located at 2600 36th Avenue from PUD (Planned Unit Development) to C-H

(Commercial High Intensity) zoning

Project Name: 2600 36th Avenue –Gateway Self-Storage Rezone 

Case No.: ZON2018-0005 

Applicant: Jeff Engelman 

Location: 2600 36th Avenue 

Presenter: Darrell Gesick, Planner III 

VII. Staff Report

VIII. Adjournment to Worksession: Energy Action Plan

PLANNING COMMISSION HEARING DATES: 

All hearings are held on the 2nd and 4th Tuesdays of the month at 1:15 p.m. at City Center South, 

1001 11th Avenue, Greeley, Colorado. Agendas are posted at http://greeleygov.com/government/b-

c/boards-and-commissions/planning.  

September 24, 2019 

October 8, 2019 

October 22, 2019 

November 12, 2019 

November 26, 2019 

December 10, 2019 

December 24, 2019 

2

http://greeleygov.com/government/b-c/boards-and-commissions/planning
http://greeleygov.com/government/b-c/boards-and-commissions/planning


Planning Commission Proceedings   1  August 27, 2019 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
Proceedings 

August 27, 2019 

City Center South 

Council Chambers Room 

1001 11th Avenue 

1:15 p.m. 

I. Call to Order

Chair Yeater called the meeting to order at 1:17 p.m. Commissioners Schulte, Andersen,

Modlin, Briscoe, Rarick and Romulo were present

II. Recognition of Jon Rarick

Chair Yeater recognized Commissioner Rarick for his 10 years spent serving on the

Planning Commission. Chair Yeater expressed that Commissioner Rarick is a wealth of

knowledge, and has been a personal mentor to him. Chair Yeater continued to congratulate

him on his retirement. Commissioner Rarick addressed the Council and the public and

thanked everyone for the support he has received throughout the years. He thanked the City

of Greeley staff, as well as the citizens of Greeley for being supportive and respectful of

the Planning Commission and its process over the years. Community Development

Director Brad Mueller also thanked Commissioner Rarick on behalf of the City of Greeley

staff for his insights and for his genuine heart and interest in our community. Mr. Mueller

continued to say that Commissioner Rarick has a history of taking a good stance on

difficult topics, and that he will be missed.

III. Approval of minutes for meeting held on July 23, 2019

Commissioner Modlin moved to approve minutes of the meeting held on July 23, 2019.

Commissioner Briscoe seconded the motion. The motion carried 6-0.

IV. Approval of minutes for meeting held on August 13, 2019

Commissioner Andersen moved to approve minutes of the meeting held on August 13,

2019. Commissioner Modlin seconded the motion. The motion carried 6-0.

Chair Yeater recused himself for items V and VI and turned the hearing over to Vice-Chair

Briscoe.

 
3



 

Planning Commission Proceedings                                                            2                                                                 August 27, 2019 

 

 

 

V. A public hearing to consider a request to rezone approximately 39.18 acres from R-L     

            (Residential Low Density), C-D (Conservation District), and C-L (Commercial Low      

             Intensity) to I-M (Industrial Medium Intensity) 

 

Project Name: Best Way Rezone   

Case No.:  ZON2018-0017 

Applicant:  City of Greeley 

Location:             145 North 35th Avenue  

Presenter: Caleb Jackson, Planner II 

 

Caleb Jackson, addressed the Commission and requested permission to combine the 

presentations for items V and VI since they are interrelated. Vice-Chair Briscoe approved. 

Mr. Jackson addressed the Commission and entered the staff report into the record with a 

minor revision. He presented the address, facts about the topography and drainage, and 

history about the site. Mr. Jackson also provided details about the location’s surroundings 

and zoning, as well as the land use and what it is currently. He stated that the current 

zoning is Residential Low Intensity (R-L), Commercial Low Intensity (C-L), and 

Conservation District (C-D). He exhibited images of the current zoning scheme that 

mapped the location of the proposed rezone. Mr. Jackson explained that the proposal is to 

rezone the area from its current zoning to Industrial Medium Intensity (I-M). He stated that 

the purpose of the rezone is to allow for a Use by Special Review (USR) amendment of the 

fire training station USR, to allow an increase in outdoor storage from three to five acres.  

 

Mr. Jackson spoke about rezone criteria and how development has changed since the initial 

USR, and why the area would be best suited for an I-M zoning. He stated that the zoning 

has been in place since 2003, and since no development has occurred under that zoning 

besides the fire training facility, further development of this site and city ownership is 

unlikely. Mr. Jackson expressed that although there are no significant environmental 

impacts to the area and the noise is regulated by municipal code, staff is recommending 

that a condition be added to the USR to limit morning noise. This would bring the area into 

alignment with municipal standards by having quiet hours between 10 p.m. and 7 a.m.  

 

Mr. Jackson went into further detail of the proposal and its mitigated visual impacts by 

advising that adequate fencing and landscaping, as well as adequate city infrastructures are 

already present. The rezone is also consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, encourages 

compact growth, and aids with the city’s construction and maintenance of construction. Mr. 

Jackson noted that notifications were mailed to nearby property owners and signs were 

posted on the property. The city did receive three inquiries that were favorable or neutral, 

and one very unfavorable inquiry that was primarily related to the morning time noise. This 

citizen inquiry is what prompted the proposed condition on the USR amendment. Staff’s 

recommendation on the zoning action is approval.  

 

Mr. Jackson explained that the USR amendment is to revise the USR that was approved for 

the fire training facility to add outdoor storage as an additional principal use for the site. He 

went into detail regarding the landscaping and fence surrounding the existing asphalt 

recycle area and along 4th Street. Mr. Jackson noted that once again the proposal is 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and is compatible with the current industrial uses 

that are on site. He also stated that impacts to the neighborhood are expected to be 

 
4



 

Planning Commission Proceedings                                                            3                                                                 August 27, 2019 

 

mitigated appropriately, and that there are no predicted traffic or parking issues that will 

arise due to the USR. The city received the same inquiries as before in response to the 

notifications that were mailed and signs that were posted. Staff recommends approval with 

the condition that hours of operation be limited to between 7 a.m. and sunset. Mr. Jackson 

then opened the floor for questions.  

 

Commissioner Andersen asked what is included for outdoor storage. Mr. Jackson replied 

that it is specifically for recycled asphalt and equipment at this time. He advised that the 

usage information is included in the applicant’s site plan and narrative. Commissioner 

Andersen questioned if there was going to be anything additional stored outside, and Mr. 

Jackson responded that at this time there will not be. Commissioner Andersen and Vice-

Chair Briscoe requested more information regarding the nature of the recycled asphalt, 

including what exactly will be recycled and how that will affect the city. Mr. Jackson 

introduced Jerry Pickett, supervisor of the Streets Division on behalf of the City of Greeley 

to provide more insight. Mr. Pickett explained that the asphalt being recycled is leftover 

from city projects which is then ground up and used as a base material. He stated that the 

city is also the entity that manages the operation including the selling of material to 

contractors which is a great source of revenue.  

 

Vice-Chair Briscoe opened the public hearing at 1:34 pm.  

 

Ellen McGurk who lives on West 40th Street in Greeley, CO stated that this would affect 

her property and asked what the noise level would be from 7am-10pm.  

 

Tracy Trentlage at 3914 West B Street in Greeley, CO expressed concern about the noise 

and smoke in her backyard which adversely impacts her pets, her quality of life, and the 

property values in the area. Ms. Trentlage continued to say that she disagrees with the 

proposal and thinks it should be relocated to an area where it won’t negatively affect the 

residents.  

 

Dr. Elizabeth Clark at 17898 Weld County Road 72 in Eaton, CO stated that she is the 

owner of the veterinary hospital and the building that houses it. Dr. Clark expressed that 

her major concern is the entrance from 35th Avenue to the acreage that houses multiple 

businesses because there is only one entrance with limited areas for pedestrians. The 

current heavy flow of semi and truck traffic negatively impacts her clients, employees, 

pedestrians, and surrounding business owners. She is also concerned about the plans to 

expand 35th Avenue into four lanes, and asked for more information regarding the plans for 

a turn lane. Dr. Clark requested that Planning Commission take a closer look at the amount 

of current and future traffic in this area. Her final question was for clarification regarding 

the USR.  

 

Since there were no more questions from the public, Vice-Chair Briscoe asked the City 

Staff to respond.  

 

Mr. Jackson began by addressing the concern surrounding 35th Avenue. He confirmed that 

there are currently plans to widen 35th Avenue, and advised that turn lanes would be 

provided where warranted by traffic study and analysis. In regards to comments about the 

smoke, it is most likely being produced by the fire training facility. Finally, Mr. Jackson 

responded to the complaints concerning noise levels. He noted that there haven’t been any 

noise studies conducted, but any noise levels would still be subject to the Municipal Code 

 
5



 

Planning Commission Proceedings                                                            4                                                                 August 27, 2019 

 

standards for noise. He reiterated that the condition that is being recommended will aid in 

the area being in alignment with those standards of noise being allowed outside of normal 

hours.  

 

Vice-Chair Briscoe requested that concerns about trash and dumping be addressed by Mr. 

Pickett. Commissioner Andersen asked if the driveway is paved, and Mr. Jackson 

responded that it is paved near 35th Avenue, but eventually turns into an unpaved drive. 

Commissioner Schulte raised concerns regarding dust abatement. Mr. Jackson clarified that 

the majority of the road is paved and therefore dust should not be an issue. Commissioner 

Romulo asked for an update on the traffic studies for 35th Avenue. Mr. Jackson deferred 

this and further questioning to Joel Hemesath, Director of Public Works. Mr. Hemesath 

provided more information and insight into the area’s traffic and construction plans for 

2021. He also spoke about the primary functions and history of the asphalt recycle facility. 

He noted that the operation only grinds raw material twice a year, usually in spring and fall, 

and there would be no increase in noise levels from what it has been the last 2 ½ years 

since the facility opened.  

 

Mr. Hemesath stated that the operation began as an asphalt storage facility, but has 

continued to grow which is why the applicant is now requesting the rezone to bring the 

location into compliance. Commissioner Andersen clarified that the facility has been 

operating in the incorrect zoning. Mr. Hemesath reiterated that the facility began as a small 

storage center but has since expanded.   

 

Commissioner Andersen asked if there is a different location where this could take place. 

Mr. Hemesath stated that he is not aware of one, especially since the current site serves its 

purpose very well. Mr. Hemesath also communicated that the noise produced by the 

operation is minimal in his opinion. Commissioner Andersen asked if a noise study could 

be done, and Mr. Hemesath advised that yes, one can be conducted.  

 

Commissioner Schulte requested clarification regarding if the purpose of the amendment 

was to allow for expansion of the facility or if it is to accommodate the existing operation. 

Mr. Hemesath answered that the proposed rezoning will bring the current operation into 

compliance, and as of right now there are no plans for expansion. He continued by 

providing a more detailed explanation of the daily activity that occurs at the site. Mr. 

Pickett stepped forward to give more information about the truck volume and traffic flow 

of the area.  

 

Commissioner Modlin asked whether changes could be made in the event a noise study 

warrants change to bring the operation into compliance. Mr. Pickett replied that yes, 

however, he does not believe that the noise level is currently out of alignment with City 

Ordinance. Commissioner Schulte had follow up questions regarding what the current 

ordinance is for noise level within the city. Community Development Director, Brad 

Mueller, advised that there is currently no decibel threshold. He further explained that if 

there was a noise complaint the responding police officer would have the authority to make 

the decision as to whether the noise level is in compliance. Commissioner Romulo asked 

how that information would be reflected in a noise study. Mr. Mueller replied that it would 

identify major noise sources and the city would respond to the data appropriately.  

 

  

 
6



 

Planning Commission Proceedings                                                            5                                                                 August 27, 2019 

 

Commissioner Andersen requested further detail regarding the current zoning and its 

history, as well as the possibility of more noise buffering. Mr. Jackson provided more 

information. Commissioner Romulo questioned how accurate a noise study would be 

considering that grinding only occurs twice a year. Mr. Jackson advised that the applicant 

would conduct grinding for the purpose of the study. Commissioner Modlin asked the 

Vice-Chair if the motion could be tabled pending a noise study.  

 

Commissioner Andersen expressed her concerns regarding the issue, specifically how 

inappropriate it is that the city is operating in a residentially zoned area. Mr. Hemesath 

responded with more history regarding the land’s original use and zoning. He expressed 

that he understands that the zoning issue is a misstep on the city’s behalf, but they are 

currently trying to rectify the situation. Mr. Mueller offered more clarification by stating 

that the fire station and fire facilities Use by Right in the current zoning districts do allow 

for accessory structures or incidental uses. Therefore, the minimal storage and stockpiling 

of asphalt that originally occurred on site did comply with the zoning. He advised that 

considering how much the facility has expanded, it is now at the point where a rezone 

request is necessary. He reiterated that the land use and the facility being classified as 

incidental are matters that are open to interpretation, and he wants to clarify that it was 

never operating illegally.  

 

Commissioner Romulo requested that the noise study include sound comparisons to objects 

that we are familiar with such as a lawn mower, since there is currently no decibel 

threshold to reference. She would also like potential options for noise mitigation to be 

included. Mr. Hemesath advised that he will include those items in the study.  

 

Commissioner Modlin made a motion to continue the case pending a noise study. 

Commissioner Schulte seconded. Mr. Mueller stated that the Planning Commission needs 

to clarify which item they are asking to continue since they need to vote on them 

separately. He also recommended that there be a stipulation placed on the motion, 

mandating that any identified mitigation elements that are identified by the noise study be 

implemented as a condition of the rezoning or USR.  

 

Commissioner Romulo questioned what action the city will take if the issue is tabled. Mr. 

Mueller advised that it is subject to his discretion and whether he believes the current 

facility uses are accessory. He stated that at this point he has determined that they are, and 

therefore, any current operations can continue. Commissioner Schulte expressed that he 

would like to choose a date for when the motion will continue instead of leaving it subject 

to the results of the noise study. Commissioner Modlin made a motion to continue item V 

to November 12, 2019 pending the noise study, any possible remedies for noise abatement, 

and a copy of the planned design for 35th Avenue. Commissioner Schulte seconded the 

amended motion. Motion passed 6-0.  

 

 

 

  

 
7



 

Planning Commission Proceedings                                                            6                                                                 August 27, 2019 

 

VI.  A public hearing to consider a Use by Special review amendment request to allow    

            outdoor storage on a 39-acre site 

 

Project Name: 1st Amendment to the Greeley Emergency/Fire Training Facility 

USR 

Case No.:  USR2018-0025 

Applicant:  City of Greeley 

Location: 145 North 35th Avenue 

Presenter: Caleb Jackson, Planner II 

 

Vice-Chair Briscoe opened the public hearing at 2:20 p.m. Ellen McGurk expressed that 

she was under the impression that this property was going to be converted into a city park 

with a lake. Justin Yeater (speaking as a citizen) at 131 and 135 N 35th Avenue Greeley, 

CO advised that he owns the landscaping business on this property. Mr. Yeater stated that 

he encourages the Planning 

 

Commission to evaluate the truck traffic and the design for 35th Avenue. He also 

encourages the city to present photographs of the site and a 3D model of the area to 

demonstrate what the area currently looks like. He wants the city to be presented with 3D 

drawings of what the site looks like.  

 

Since there were no other comments from the public, Vice-Chair Briscoe turned the 

hearing back to Planning Commission. Commissioner Schulte moved to continue item VI 

until November 12, 2019. Commissioner Modlin seconded the motion. Motion passed 6-0. 

 

VII.  A public meeting to consider a preliminary subdivision of 26.6 acres of land, which    

            includes the dedication of rights-of-way for future public streets 

 

Project Name: Clover Meadows Subdivision, 1st Amendment, Preliminary 

Subdivision 

Case No.:  SUB2018-0196 

Applicant:  Roche Constructors, Inc. 

Location: South of C Street, east and west of 30th Avenue 

Presenter: Marian Duran, Planner II 

 

Marian Duran addressed the Commission and entered the staff report into the record. Ms. 

Duran outlined her presentation and advised that she will note any differences. She 

provided a history of the area accompanied by various plat sheets. The Administrative 

Review Team has approved the proposal.  Ms. Duran opened the floor for questions. Chair 

Yeater resumed his place at 2:30 p.m. Commissioner Andersen requested clarification 

regarding setbacks, as well as of one of the sheets. Ms. Duran provided additional details.  

 

Chair Yeater opened the public hearing at 2:35 p.m. There being no public input, the 

hearing was closed at 2:35 p.m.  

 

  

 
8



Planning Commission Proceedings   7  August 27, 2019 

Commissioner Andersen stated that based on the application received and the preceding 

project summary and analysis, along with the deviations from the following Development 

Code Standards in Sections 18.38.070 and 18.42.040 (9), the Planning Commission finds 

that the Clover Meadows Preliminary Subdivision, 1st Amendment, complies with the 

provisions of Section 18.04.440(d) 1 and 2, of the Subdivision Regulations, Development 

Code, and Comprehensive Plan, and therefore, approves the request as presented. 

Commissioner Rarick seconded. Motion passed 6-0. 

VIII. Staff Report

Planning Manager Michael Garrott introduced new Commissioner Brian Franzen.

IX. Adjournment to Worksession: Site Plans / Design/Street Master Plan Update

The hearing was adjourned at 2:38 p.m.

____________________________________ 

Justin Yeater, Chair  

____________________________________ 

Brad Mueller, Secretary 

 
9



This page intentionally left blank. 

 
10



Planning Commission Summary 
ZON2019-0012, PUD2019-0010, and PUD2019-0011 
September 10, 2019 Page 1 

PLANNING COMMISSION SUMMARY 

ITEMS: Promontory Rezone PUD – 1st Amendment to Areas F, L, and M 
and Preliminary and Final Plat  

FILE NUMBERS: ZON2019-0012 
PUD2019-0010 
PUD2019-0011 

PROJECT: Promontory Preliminary PUD, Areas, F, L, M, Rezone PUD – 1st 
Amendment to Areas F, L, and M 
Promontory Imagine School, 2nd Filing, Preliminary PUD 
Promontory Imagine School, 2nd Filing, Final PUD 

LOCATION: Approximately 400 feet from the intersection of Promontory 
Parkway and the future 20th Street alignment  (18th Street is to the 
west) 

APPLICANT: City of Greeley, on behalf of Tagg, Inc. 

CASE PLANNER: Marian Duran, Planner II 

PLANNING COMMISSION HEARING DATE:   September 10, 2019 

PLANNING COMMISSION FUNCTION: 
The Planning Commission shall consider the staff report, along with testimony and comments 
made by the applicant and the public and shall then make a recommendation to the City Council 
for the Rezone PUD 1st Amendment to Areas F, L, and M as well as the and the Preliminary PUD 
request, which includes a review of the Preliminary Plat based on the review criteria in Sections 
18.30.050(c)(3) and 18.32.040 (b)(1-2), and the Planning Commission shall take action on  the 
Final PUD request, based on the review criteria in Section 18.32.140 (1).   

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
A request for the City of Greeley, on behalf of Tagg, Inc., for a PUD amendment, to add fire 
stations and schools as allowed uses within the Promontory PUD, Areas F, L, and M. Also included 
are the Promontory Imagine School, 2nd Filing, preliminary and final plat which are reviewed as a 
part of the PUD Amendment. The Promontory Imagine School, 2nd Filing plat consists of 
approximately 144.67 acres total (Lot 1, being 2.507 acres, Tract A, being 94.231 acres, and Tract 
B, being 40.920, and the future 20th Street right-of-way alignment, being 7.012 acres) (see 
Attachment A – Vicinity Map, Attachment B – Preliminary Plat and Final Plat, and Attachment C 
– Promontory PUD – 1st Amendment Document).

 
11



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2019-0012, PUD2019-0010, and PUD2019-0011 
September 10, 2019 Page 2 
 

A. REQUEST 
The applicant is requesting approval of the PUD Amendment to add fire stations and schools as 
allowed uses in Areas F, L, and M. Also included with this request is    preliminary and final plat, 
to create one buildable lot for the fire station and two tracts for future development. (see 
Attachment A – Vicinity Map, Attachment B – Preliminary Plat and Final Plat, and Attachment C 
– Rezone Promontory PUD – 1st Amendment to Areas F, L, and M Document). 
 
B. STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Approval. Three recommended motions in Section K, below.  
 Item K.1 (Rezone PUD – 1st Amendment to Areas F, L, and M Request)  
  Recommended Motion by Planning Commission, Approval by City Council 
 Item K.2 – (Preliminary PUD Request, which includes a review of the Preliminary Plat)  
  Recommended Motion by Planning Commission, Approval by City Council 
 Item K.3 – (Final PUD Request, which includes a review of the Final Plat) 
  Approval by Planning Commission  

 
C. LOCATION  

Abutting Zoning: 
 North:  PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
 South:  PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
 East:    PUD (Planned Unit Development)  
 West:     PUD (Planned Unit Development) 

 
 Surrounding Land Uses:   

 North:    Vacant land 
 South:    Future 20th Street Alignment and vacant land 

 East:      Vacant land 
West:    Promontory Parkway and vacant land 

 
 Site Characteristics: 
 The site is currently undeveloped with a 13-foot approximate 

topographical/grading difference from west to east. There are no current 
right-of-ways dedicated previous to this request. The subject area has 
remained largely vacant, no development has occurred in areas F, L, M to 
date. 

 
D. BACKGROUND 
The parcels were annexed into the City in 1985 as part of the Golden Triangle Second Annexation 
[File No. PUD 2:85], which consisted an area of approximately 1,701 acres. The intent of the 
concept PUD was to allow for mix-use development, including open space, residential, 
commercial, industrial, and recreational uses. The conceptual PUD plan shows light industrial 
development, business office, park, and commercial uses on the southern portion of the PUD area 
that transitioned to various densities of residential and recreational/open space uses to the north.  
 
In 1997, the City Council approved an amendment, which broke the Golden Triangle Concept 
PUD from one PUD into six PUDs [File No. PUD 11:97]. The amendment was intended to 

 
12



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2019-0012, PUD2019-0010, and PUD2019-0011 
September 10, 2019 Page 3 
 

streamline the PUD approval process. Under the 1976 Development Code, PUD actions required 
all land owners to sign off on development plans. Understanding that the signature requirement 
could be cumbersome for future amendments, the concept PUD was split into six smaller PUDs 
and assigned each a set of allowed uses based on the concept PUD plan. The subject site is located 
in the Golden Triangle Concept PUD #1. In accordance with the Golden Triangle Concept PUD, 
PUD #1 allowed industrial uses only. 
 
On December 1, 1998, the City Council approved an amendment to the Golden Triangle PUD, 
which rezoned the subject properties from PUD (Golden Triangle) to PUD (Tri-Pointe), [File No. 
PUD 8:98].  The Tri-Pointe PUD encompassed an area of 668.72 acres. The conceptual plan as 
approved, allowed for a mixture of land uses, varying from residential, institutional, corporation 
headquarters, general commercial, and a requirement for the dedication of parks, schools, and fire 
station location, but did not list fire stations and schools as allowed uses.  From the minutes of the 
hearing, the applicant (Craig Harrison), agreed to provide “a 10 acre-park, a 1 ½ acre fire station 
site to the City of Greeley, and a 10-acre site for an elementary school to the Windsor School 
District.”  “The park and school sites would adjoin each other, the land that is dedicated would not 
include any water rights or on-site infrastructure.” 
 
The permitted uses within the Tri-Pointe PUD (aka Promontory PUD), Area F, L, M allows for 
the following uses: Open space, parks, and the extension of lake Area E, single-family, multi-
family, two-family, and townhouse dwellings, as well as banks, savings and loans, financial 
institutions, ATM’s, drive-up window, medical and dental offices/clinics, hotel and motels, 
offices, recreational uses, restaurants, and retail sales not to exceed 40,000 square feet.  
  
On March 16, 1999, the City Council approved an amendment to the Tri-Pointe PUD [File No. 
PUD 3:99], the PUD was amended and the name of the PUD was formally changed to Promontory.  
This amendment also capped the amount of retail to 84.54 acres, increased the residential acreage 
cap from 200 acres to 250 acres (a minimum of 900 dwelling units), increased the height allowance 
for office/business uses from 40 feet to 70 feet and 60 feet for industrial uses, and required of the 
developer to dedicate a 10 acre park and a minimum of 1.5 acres for a fire station location   
 
On December 21, 1999, the City Council approved modifications to the hearing held on March 
16, 1999.  At this hearing, the Council approved the proposed detached sidewalks, and site and 
building design standards, lighting standards, parking in non-residential areas to exceed 125 
percent of the requirement, added a requirement for bicycle parking required, off-street parking 
regulations and landscaping to comply with the City’s Development code, and modified the 
requirement of signatures to submit PUD for approvals.  Under the revision, each land owner 
would be able to sign a letter of waiver, “forfeiting their rights, which would allow future PUD’s 
be signed only by those pre-approving the PUD when they buy land.  This proposal would be in 
lieu of application for final PUD approvals being submitted by the property owner, metro 
district, and 75 percent of all property owners owning 75 percent of the land within that tract or 
sub-tract.”  Thereby, allowing individual property owners within the individual tracts or PUD 
amendment to be submitted by the applicant only, and it does not requiring the metropolitan 
district’s signature of approval, so long as and provided that, the district does not own land 
within the tract or area. 
 

 
13



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2019-0012, PUD2019-0010, and PUD2019-0011 
September 10, 2019 Page 4 
 

In 1999, the City of Greeley approved two metropolitan districts that serve the Promontory 
development, which are known as Tri-Pointe Commercial District and Tri-Pointe Residential 
District [MD 1:99].   
 
E. APPROVAL CRITERIA 

 
REZONE PROCEDURES  
FOR PLANNING COMMISSION AND CITY COUNCIL REVIEW 
Development Code, Section 18.30.050(c)(3), Criteria Used 
For the purpose of establishing and maintaining sound, stable and desirable development within 
the City, the rezoning of land is to be discouraged and allowed only under circumstances provided 
for in this Section [of the Code].  This policy is based on the opinion of the City Council that the 
City’s zoning map is a result of a detailed and comprehensive appraisal of the City’s present and 
future needs regarding land use allocation and other zoning considerations, and, as such, should 
not be amended unless to correct manifest errors or because of changed or changing conditions 
in a particular area of the City in general: 
 

a)   Has the area changed, or is it changing to such a degree that it is in the public interest 
to rezone the subject property to encourage development or redevelopment of the 
area? 
 
Staff Comment:  A rezone is requested to allow fire stations and school uses in Areas 

L, M, N of the Promontory PUD. Since the zoning in 1998, two 
major headquarters have been constructed and over 300 single-
family lots have been development within the Promontory 
development.  The subject properties have remained undeveloped 
for over 20 years, without any land use approvals or requests.  The 
applicant has stated that the limited land use options has impacted 
the ability to develop and is now requesting institutional uses such 
as a fire stations and schools be specified in the PUD.  As such, the 
applicant is requesting to include fire stations and schools to allow 
the construction of Fire Station No. 6, specifically in area L. It is 
also anticipated that a future school site may be located within areas 
F, L, or M. Although the exact location of where a school would be 
located is uncertain at this time, allowing this use would open up 
future opportunities for the Windsor School District to develop a 
school or schools within these areas.  

 
    The proposal complies with this criterion.  

 
b) Has the existing zoning been in place for at least fifteen (15) years without substantial 

development resulting and does the existing zoning appear to be obsolete, given 
development trends? 

 
Staff Comment: The subject site has been zoned Planned Unit Development (PUD) 

for over nearly 20 years, without any development within the sites.  

 
14



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2019-0012, PUD2019-0010, and PUD2019-0011 
September 10, 2019 Page 5 
 

The zoning designation does not appear to be obsolete, however, 
adding additional uses to the sites would provide more opportunities 
for development.  

 
The proposal complies with this criterion.  
 

c)  Are there clerical or technical errors to correct? 
 

Staff Comment: There are no clerical or technical errors to correct.   
  
 This criterion is not applicable to this request.  

 
d) Are there detrimental environmental impacts, such as flood plains, inadequate 

drainage, slopes, unstable soils, etc., that may affect future development of this site 
and which may not have been considered during the original zoning of the property? 

 
Staff Comment: The site does have a grade difference of about 13 feet from east to 

west, but the site is developable. There are no known detrimental 
environmental conditions on the property.  

 
This criterion is not applicable to this request. 

 
e)   Is the proposed rezoning necessary in order to provide land for a community related 

use, which was not anticipated at the time of adoption of the City’s Comprehensive 
Plan; or have the policies of the City changed to the extent that a rezoning is 
warranted? 

 
Staff Comment: The rezone request is not necessary to provide land for community 

related uses.  
 

This criterion is not applicable to this request.  
 

f) What is the potential impact of the proposed rezoning upon the immediate 
neighborhood and the city as a whole (including potential noise and environmental 
impacts, visual impacts, the provision of City services such as police, fire, water, 
sewer, and pedestrian systems and parks and recreational facilities)? 

    
Staff Comment: It is not anticipated that the proposed zoning would create 

significant impacts on the property or adjacent land uses.  
  

Any potential noise created by future development would be 
regulated by the Municipal Code.  The appropriate buffering would 
be required to be provided, which lessens any potential visual 
impacts.  City services should not be impacted, since the 
surrounding area is already served by municipal services such as 

 
15



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2019-0012, PUD2019-0010, and PUD2019-0011 
September 10, 2019 Page 6 
 

water and sewer.  Police and Fire already serve this area within 4-
miles of the site.  

 
The proposal complies with this criterion.  
 

 g)   Is there clear and convincing evidence that the proposed rezoning would be 
 consistent with the policies and goals of the City’s Comprehensive Plan and comply 
 with the applicable zoning overlay requirements? 

 
There are no existing zoning overlays and/or zoning overlay requirements for the subject 
property. The following City of Greeley Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan policies 
apply to this request: 

 
Education, Health, and Human Services: 
 EH-2.4 Land Use – Promote land use decisions that support walkability and 

improve access to basic needs, such as neighborhood markets or grocery 
stores, parks and natural areas, as well as medical and personal services. 
Support access to goods and services that support health and wellness in all 
neighborhoods.  
 EH-4.2 School Siting – Collaborate with the school districts in developing 

long-range school siting plans.  Encourage new schools on sites that are: 
o Located near the population they are intended to serve: 
o Co-locate with or near existing facilities and amenities that provide 
opportunities for shared use and capital improvements, such as City parks; 
o Separated from potential land use hazards or nuisances; 
o Served by transportation options (e.g. roadways, transit, bike path and 
sidewalks) that provide safe access to and from school; and 
o Sites so as to minimize impacts on the surrounding neighborhood or area 
and existing transportation network. 

 
Growth & City Form: 
 GC-1.3 Adequate Public Facilities – Restrict development to the Adequate 

Public Facilities Area (APFA) except where the developer provides the 
equivalent level, or cash-in-lieu at a rate determined by the City, to install 
infrastructure that would otherwise be provided by the City. 
  

Staff Comment: The Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan strongly supports compact 
growth development within areas that are adequately served by services. 
When Promontory was created, the vision was at a grand scale, which 
enabled development to expand to the western fringe of the City, but 
many services at the time were not adequate. Services such as water and 
sewer were extended, but fire and police are still outside of the normal 
emergency response times, thus, making these services inadequate even 

 
16



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2019-0012, PUD2019-0010, and PUD2019-0011 
September 10, 2019 Page 7 
 

though they are currently servicing the existing surrounding uses. The 
addition of schools and fire stations allows for other development 
options for the area.   

 
The proposal complies with this criterion.  

 
h) What is the potential impact of the proposed rezoning upon an approved Zoning 

Suitability Plan for the property?  
 

Staff Summary:   The provided Zoning Suitability Map shows that the property can be 
development in accordance with the Development Code Standards (see 
Attachment C – Rezone Promontory PUD – 1st Amendment to Areas F, 
L, and M Document). 

 
     The proposal complies with this criterion. 
 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) ESTABLISHMENT  
FOR PLANNING COMMISSION AND CITY COUNCIL REVIEW  
Development Code, Section 18.32.040 (b) 1-2, Criteria Used 
In reaching recommendations and decisions as to rezoning land to the PUD district, the Planning 
Commission and the City Council shall apply the following standards in addition to the standards 
and procedures of Section 18.30.050 (noted above) applicable to the rezoning of land: 

1. Area Requirements.  
The area of a proposed PUD shall be of substantial size to permit its design and 

 development as a cohesive unit fulfilling the stated purpose of these regulations and to 
 establish the PUD as a meaningful part of the larger community.  

Staff Comment: The site contains 144.67 acres; Section 18.32.040(b)(1) of the 
Greeley Development Code limits consideration for PUD 
establishment to a minimum of two (2) acres in size (see Attachment 
B – Preliminary and Final  Plat).  

  The proposal complies with this criterion. 

2.  Is the proposed Preliminary/Concept PUD Consistent with the Land Use Chapter of 
the Comprehensive Plan?  
A PUD proposal shall be found to be consistent with all applicable elements of the Land 
Use Chapter of the City's adopted Comprehensive Plan with respect to its proposed internal 
design and use, its relationship to adjacent areas, and the City as a whole before it may be 
zoned as a PUD. 

The following City of Greeley Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan policies apply to this 
request.   

 
17



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2019-0012, PUD2019-0010, and PUD2019-0011 
September 10, 2019 Page 8 
 

 
 Education, Health, and Human Services: 

 EH-2.4 Land Use – Promote land use decisions that support walkability and 
improve access to basic needs, such as neighborhood markets or grocery 
stores, parks and natural areas, as well as medical and personal services. 
Support access to goods and services that support health and wellness in all 
neighborhoods.  
 EH-4.2 School Siting – Collaborate with the school districts in developing 

long-range school siting plans.  Encourage new schools on sites that are: 
o Located near the population they are intended to serve: 
o Co-locate with or near existing facilities and amenities that provide 
opportunities for shared use and capital improvements, such as City parks; 
o Separated from potential land use hazards or nuisances; 
o Served by transportation options (e.g. roadways, transit, bike path and 
sidewalks) that provide safe access to and from school; and 
o Sites so as to minimize impacts on the surrounding neighborhood or area 
and existing transportation network. 

 
Growth & City Form: 
 GC-1.3 Adequate Public Facilities – Restrict development to the Adequate 

Public Facilities Area (APFA) except where the developer provides the 
equivalent level, or cash-in-lieu at a rate determined by the City, to install 
infrastructure that would otherwise be provided by the City. 

 
Staff Comment: The Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan strongly supports 

development that is adequate and serves the public locally. If the 
rezone request is approved, future school sites and fire stations would 
be allowed to be developed in closer proximity to the existing 
commercial and residential neighborhood at Promontory.  

 
       The proposal complies with this criterion.  

 
FINAL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD)  
FOR PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW 
Development Code, Section 18.32.140 (1), Criteria Used 
In reaching recommendations and decisions as to rezoning land to the PUD district, the Planning 
Commission shall apply the following one standard in addition to the standards and procedures of 
Section 18.30.050 and 18.32.040 applicable to the rezoning of land: 

  

 
18



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2019-0012, PUD2019-0010, and PUD2019-0011 
September 10, 2019 Page 9 
 

1. Is the Final PUD Plan substantially in compliance with the approved Preliminary 
PUD Plan? 

 
Staff Comment: The Final PUD plan is in accordance with the Preliminary PUD and the 

applicable Development Code as noted below. Subsequent amendments 
if in conformance with the Preliminary and Final, would be processed 
administratively. The Adequate Public Facility Area criteria has been 
analyzed and documented below:  

   
Urban Growth and Adequate Public Facility Area (APFA) 
The site is not located largely within a suburban developed area, but it is being adequately 
served by water, sewer, streets, and parks and trails. Full connection to the Sheep Draw 
Trail has not been accomplished until future development occurs between Promontory 
Parkway/20th Street and 83rd Avenue were the nearest trail system occurs. Fire and police 
are not adequate with respect to response times, but they are currently served by the Greeley 
Fire Station No. 7 station, which is approximately 3 to 4 miles away from the Promontory 
PUD area. The subject site is vacant and water and sewer mains would be required to be 
extended to the proposed site from adjacent services. A new fire station, which is what the 
rezone PUD Amendment request would open opportunities to develop a fire station in the 
Promontory area and hence, improve response times during actual emergency events for 
the existing neighboring residential homes and commercial businesses.  

 
F. PHYSICAL SITE CHARACTERISTICS 

1. SUBDIVISION HISTORY 
The subject sites are part of the Promontory Subdivision, which was platted in 2000 [Rec 
No. 2798115]. 
 

2. HAZARDS 
The Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) conducted on the sire showed no potential 
hazards. 
 

3. WILDLIFE 
The site is not located in an area of ecological significance. 
 

4. FLOODPLAIN 
The property is not located within any flood zones. No major waterways are in the vicinity. 

 
5. DRAINAGE AND EROSION 

As one of the first sites developing in the southern portion of the PUD, drainage 
improvements to accommodate small offsite flows as well as the flows from the 
development of the area are required as part of the development. No major concerns on 
drainage and erosion have been found. 

 
6. TRANSPORTATION 

The subject sites can obtain access from Promontory Circle, 18th Street and future 20th 
Street alignment from Promontory Parkway and Highway 34 Business on the north or the 

 
19



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2019-0012, PUD2019-0010, and PUD2019-0011 
September 10, 2019 Page 10 
 

Highway 34 Bypass on the south.  Adding schools and police uses should not negatively 
impact the area, but would improve the areas with respect to meeting the requirement for 
adequate public facilities. 
  

G. SERVICES 
1. WATER 

The current subdivision has availability of services and with the additional utilities that 
would be used to serve the site and set up for future development, it would be adequately 
served 

 
2. SANITARY SEWER 

The current subdivision has availability of services and with the additional utilities that 
would be used to serve the site and set up for future development, it would be adequately 
served. 
 

3. EMERGENCY SERVICES 
The subject site is within the City of Greeley’s Fire Protection area, the closest fire station 
is Station #7, which is located approximately 4.0 miles to the west (10th Street and 69th 
Avenue). A new fire station is tentatively scheduled to be completed in either the late 
summer or early fall of 2020 on Lot 1.  
 

4. PARK/OPEN SPACES 
No parks or regional open space areas are proposed with this rezone.  Any future 
development projects would be required to evaluate the need to provide a park or regional 
open space. 
 

5. SCHOOLS 
No schools are proposed or located within the subject area at this time, but with this rezone, 
PUD amendment, school uses would be allowed.  The properties are within the Windsor-
Severance RE-4 School District. The schools that currently (or will) serve the area are: 
Skyview Elementary, Severance Middle School, Windsor High School, and Severance 
High School. 
 

6. METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 
As mentioned previously within this report.  The Tri-Pointe Residential Metropolitan 
District serves this area.  
 

H. NEIGHBORHOOD IMPACTS 
1. VISUAL 

There are no proposed site changes corresponding to the PUD amendment at this time. 
 

2. NOISE 
There are no proposed site changes corresponding to the PUD amendment at this time. 
 

  

 
20



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2019-0012, PUD2019-0010, and PUD2019-0011 
September 10, 2019 Page 11 
 

I. PUBLIC NOTICE AND COMMENT 
Neighborhood notices were mailed to surrounding property owners on August 15, 2019 per 
Development Code requirements.  Additionally, two public notice signs were posted on the 
subject site on August 30, 2019. 

 
J. MINERIAL ESTATE OWNER NOTIFICATION 

Mineral notice requirements were satisfied with the previous land use applications.  
 
K. PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDED MOTIONS: 

1. Rezone Request Planning Commission’s Recommended Motion to City Council: 
Based on the application received, the Project Summary, and accompanying analysis, the 
Planning Commission finds that the proposed rezone from PUD to PUD zone district, 
Promontory PUD – 1st Amendment to Areas F, L, and M to allow fire stations and schools 
in areas F, L, M, meets the applicable Development Code criteria, Section 18.30.050(c)(3) 
a, b, f, g, and h, and therefore, recommends approval of the rezone PUD Amendment to 
the City Council. 
 

2. Preliminary PUD Request Planning Commission’s Recommended Motion to City 
Council: 
Based on the application received and the preceding analysis, the Planning Commission 
finds that the proposed Promontory Imagine School, 2nd Filing, Preliminary PUD is 
consistent with Development Code criteria, Section 18.32.040 (b) 1 and 2, and, therefore, 
recommends approval of the PUD plan as submitted to the City Council. 
 

3. Final PUD Request Planning Staff’s Recommended Motion to Planning Commission: 
Based on the application received and the preceding analysis, the Planning Commission 
finds that the proposed Promontory Imagine School, 2nd Filing, Final PUD is consistent 
with Development Code criteria, Section 18.32.140 (1), and approved Preliminary PUD 
plan, with the following condition and therefore approves the Final PUD plan as submitted: 
 

a. Approval of the Final PUD by the Planning Commission is contingent on City 
Council approval of the Preliminary PUD. 
 

4. ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment A  –  Vicinity Map 
Attachment B  –   Preliminary and Final Plat 
Attachment C  –   Rezone Promontory PUD – 1st Amendment to Areas F, L, and M    
   Document 

 
21



This page intentionally left blank. 

 
22



101stAvenueCt

102nd Ave

PromontoryCircle

1
6
th

 S
t

1
8
th

S
t

1
5
th

S
t

PromontoryParkway

� �3
4

V
ic

in
it

y
 
M

a
p

V
ic

in
it

y
 
M

a
p

�
L

e
g

e
n

d

S
u
b

je
c
t 
A

re
a

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 L

in
e
s

0
0

.2
5

0
.1

2
5

M
ile

s

A
tta

ch
m

en
t A

 
23



This page intentionally left blank. 

 
24



US Highway 34

9
5
th

US Hwy 34 (Bypass)

State H
igh

w
ay 257

C
o

u
n

ty
 R

o
a
d

 2
5

W
e
ld

 C
o

u
n

ty
 R

d
 2

1

SITE

U
S H

ig
hway

 34

P
ro

m
o

n
to

ry

16th



































































































1






� � � � � � � � � � �

	
������������������������
����  !�"�#"�� $��
�%
���& !�
�

Attachment B

25



US Highway 34

9
5
th

US Hwy 34 (Bypass)

State H
igh

w
ay 257

C
o

u
n

ty
 R

o
a
d

 2
5

W
e
ld

 C
o

u
n

ty
 R

d
 2

1

SITE

U
S H

ig
hway

 34

P
ro

m
o

n
to

ry

16th



































































































1






' ( ) ( * ( + , - . /

012345647892:;<=>?@234564789AB
CDEF GH6I3JI345 K5519L1L3<M H515

 
26



N O P Q RS T U V W X Y Z [\] ^ _] `] a b c]
d e f gg h ij k k h l mn o fnkn p h q r s t u l

f t r s f rvj g h vj w x v l mn o fni vn k y g r s t u l
f t r s f zg j q x k j v w k l mn o fnv hn i k h r s t u l

f t r s f rvj g h vj w x v l mn o fni vn k y g r s t u l

{ | } | ~ �


































































































2






� � � � � � � � �

������������������������������
���� ��� �¡ ��� ¢����£�£¡�¤ ����

 
27



This page intentionally left blank. 

 
28



Attachment C

- Schools, and Fire Stations

- Schools, and Fire Stations

Allowed Land Uses by Type

 
29

duranm
Rectangle

duranm
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by duranm

duranm
Typewritten Text

duranm
Typewritten Text

kuhnc
Text Box
Promontory Planned Unit Development -  1st Amendment to Areas F, L, and M

kuhnc
Text Box
Intent: To add Fire Stations and Schools as allowed uses in Areas F, L, and M. 



This page intentionally left blank. 

 
30



ITEM: Final PUD (Planned Unit Development)  

FILE NUMBER: PUD2019-0005  

PROJECT:  Greeley Sports Bar - Final Planned Unit Development (PUD) 

LOCATION:  Lot 1 Suffolk Subdivision 5th Filing, east of the intersection of 
Centerplace Drive and 46th Avenue 

APPLICANT:   Robert Molloy, Planscapes, on behalf of Shan I LLC 

CITY PLANNER:   Brittany Hathaway, Planner III 

PLANNING COMMISSION HEARING DATE:  September 10, 2019 

PLANNING COMMISSION FUNCTION: 
The Planning Commission shall consider the staff report, along with testimony and comments made 
by the applicant and the public and review the proposal for compliance with Chapter 18.32 of the 
Development Code and approve, approve with conditions, or deny the request. The Planning 
Commission decision shall be based on a finding that the Final Plan is in substantial conformance 
with the approved Preliminary Plan.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The City of Greeley is considering a request by Robert Molloy on behalf of Shan I LLC for a 
Final PUD (Planned Unit Development) to develop a restaurant within the Suffolk PUD, Lot 4 3rd 
Amendment. The Final PUD is the second step in the two (2) stage PUD process.  

A. REQUEST
The applicant is requesting approval of a Final PUD to add a 4,700 square-foot restaurant with a
total land use of 46,934 square feet or 1.08 acres. See Attachment A - Vicinity Map and
Attachment C - Site Plan.

Presently, the subject site hosts Homewood Suites by Hilton at 2510 46th Avenue. The current
Preliminary PUD, approved on November 13, 2012, included a restaurant site of substantially the
same size at 46,943 square feet with a requirement of a Final PUD upon development.

The applicant has included a minor subdivision with this Final PUD request (PUD2019-0005).
The request, if approved, would subdivide Lot 1 of the Suffolk Subdivision 5th Filing into two
lots. The proposed restaurant is proposed for Lot 2, while the existing hotel would be placed on
the proposed Lot 1. The minor subdivision and improvements conform to density and

PLANNING COMMISSION SUMMARY 

31



PUD2019-0005 Planning Commission Summary Page 2  September 10, 2019 
Greeley Sports Bar Final PUD  

dimensional standards set forth in Code. Upon approval of this request, the subsequent plat 
application would be finalized at the staff level.  

B. STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Approval

C. LOCATION
The subject site is located northeast of the intersection of Centerplace Drive and 46th Avenue.

SITE DATA: 

Current Zoning:  PUD (Planned Unit Development) 

Abutting Zoning:  North  -  PUD & R-H (Residential High Density) 
South -  PUD 
East -  C-L (Commercial Low Intensity) & C-H

(Commercial High Intensity)/ PUD 
West - PUD

Abutting Land Uses: North -    Hotel (Homewood Suites) 
South -    Restaurant Uses (Panera Bread and Chick-fil-a) 
East -    Undeveloped
West - Retail Uses (Lowe’s, Firestone Tire, Goodwill) and

Undeveloped 

Lot Size:  1.08 acres 

Proposed Lot Coverage: Building Area  - 4,700 Square Feet  10%
Patio Area  - 1,480 Square Feet   3% 
Parking/Paved Area - 21,843 Square Feet 46%
Sidewalk  - 3,149 Square Feet   7% 
Landscaping   - 15,762 Square Feet 34%
Total - 46,934 Square Feet 100%

Building Height: 25’ 10” 

Proposed Uses: Restaurant 

D. BACKGROUND:
The Suffolk Preliminary PUD (Planned Unit Development) was approved by City Council on January
6, 2004 (PUD 10:03).  The allowed uses identified in the Preliminary PUD are as follows: Lot 1 –

 
32



PUD2019-0005 Planning Commission Summary           Page 3                         September 10, 2019 
Greeley Sports Bar Final PUD  

Lowe’s Home Improvement store, Lot 2 – C-H (Commercial High Intensity) Uses, Lot 3 – R-M 
(Residential Medium Density) Uses, Lot 4 – R-H (Residential High Density) Uses, Outlot A – Open 
Space, and Outlot B – Stormwater Detention.   
 
On April 13, 2004, the Planning Commission approved the Suffolk Final PUD (PUD 2:04), which 
provided final details for the Lowe’s Home Improvement store on Lot 1 and a final plat recorded in 
conjunction with the Final PUD. Because site development details were not provided for Lots 2, 3, 
and 4, Preliminary and Final PUD’s are required for those properties before they can be developed. 
 
In 2012 a Preliminary/Final PUD (Lot 4, Suffolk 3rd Filing) was approved by City Council to allow 
for hotel, health club, conference center, and restaurant uses on Lot 4, and eliminated the multi-family 
uses previously permitted under the original PUD. The Preliminary PUD designated 46,943 square 
feet of land area for a future restaurant adjacent to the hotel development. The approval of the 
Preliminary/Final PUD required a Final PUD application for the development of the restaurant use. In 
addition, a minor subdivision was approved (Lot 1 of the Suffolk Subdivision 5th Filing) to subdivide 
Lot 4 into one lot (Lot 1) and one tract (Tract A) for future development.  
 
This Final PUD proposes a 4,700 square-foot restaurant as shown on the 2012 Preliminary PUD. As 
shown in Attachment E, the proposed restaurant is in substantial conformance to the original site 
layout with minor changes to building and parking orientation. The proposed building design meets 
the City’s architectural design standards and is consistent with surrounding commercial and 
residential development in this area. A minor subdivision is also proposed to further subdivide Lot 1 
into two lots. The hotel would be placed on Lot 1 and the restaurant is proposed for Lot 2. The 
subdivision portion of this request is administrative, pending approval of the Final PUD plan. 
 
E. APPROVAL CRITERIA 

The review criteria found in Chapter 18.32 of the Greeley Development Code shall be used when 
considering a Final PUD approval request. 

 
1. Is the Final PUD Plan substantially in compliance with the approved Preliminary PUD 

Plan? 
 

Staff Comment: The Final PUD plan is in accordance with the Preliminary PUD, as amended, 
and the applicable Development Code sections as noted below:  
   

Building Elevations - The proposed elevations for the restaurant is compatible with the 
overall appearance of the adjacent hotel building and surrounding properties within the PUD. 
See Attachment D for proposed elevations.  
 
Building Material - The applicant proposes coordinating with the adjacent hotel building’s 
color themes on the new restaurant. The building materials include brick and stone veneer, 
light beige stucco, beige board and batten, dark brown cementitious siding, and a standing 
seam metal roof. See Attachment D for proposed materials. 

 
33



PUD2019-0005 Planning Commission Summary           Page 4                         September 10, 2019 
Greeley Sports Bar Final PUD  

 
Landscaping – The minimum open space requirement is 20%, or alternative compliance. Per 
this application, 34% of the site is to be landscaped. Included are 19 trees, 132 shrubs, and 
164 perennials and ornamental grasses. Existing landscape is also located within the parking 
area and along 46th Avenue. 
 
Signage – Wall and freestanding signs are required to comply with the requirements as found 
in Chapter 18.54 of the Development Code. Sign locations are shown on the plans for 
illustrative purposes only and the applicant must apply for a sign permit prior to installation. 
 
Photometric – A photometric plan was reviewed with this application. It proposes 20’ 
freestanding downcast LED light poles and shielded LED wall sconces. These fixtures are 
complimentary to those used at the neighboring hotel site and comply with the 
Development Code. 
 
Parking and Circulation –The applicant has proposed 59 spaces which exceed that required 
by Code. Shared parking between the hotel and restaurant was approved with the 
Preliminary PUD with a future parking area to be developed at the time of restaurant 
development. This application has included the future parking area in the development 
plan.  
 

F. ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW TEAM COMMENTS: 
The Administrative Review Team reviewed this proposal, and there are no outstanding comments 
pertaining to this Final PUD request. 
 

G. PHYSICAL SITE CHARACTERISTICS 
1. SUBDIVISION HISTORY 

The property is part of Lot 1 of the Suffolk Subdivision 5th Filing, which was approved in 
2012 for the development of the Homewood Suites hotel. This application includes a minor 
subdivision to subdivide Lot 1 into two lots to accommodate the proposed restaurant 
development.  

 
2. HAZARDS 

There are no known hazards associated with this proposal. 
 

3. WILDLIFE 
The site is not located in an area identified for wildlife impacts. 
  

4. FLOODPLAIN  
The property does not lie within any flood zones.   
 

5. DRAINAGE AND EROSION 
There are no concerns with drainage and/or erosion on the subject site.   

 
6. TRANSPORTATION 

 
34



PUD2019-0005 Planning Commission Summary           Page 5                         September 10, 2019 
Greeley Sports Bar Final PUD  

The site would be accessed from 46th Avenue via an existing driveway leading to the 
Homewood Suites hotel. The proposed restaurant was included as a use during the 
Preliminary PUD review and site design. Additionally, a sidewalk will be installed to connect 
with the existing sidewalk along 46th Avenue.  
 

7. SERVICES 
City utility services currently serve the property and no significant impacts are anticipated   
from this proposal.  

 
H. NEIGHBORHOOD NOTIFICATION: 

Notification letters regarding the proposed PUD amendment request were mailed to property 
owners within 500 feet of the site on August 26, 2019, pursuant to Development Code 
requirements.  A sign was also posted on the site on August 26, 2019.  No comments have been 
received to date.  

 
I. PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDED MOTION: 

Based on the application received and the preceding analysis, the Planning Commission finds that 
the proposed Final PUD is in compliance with the Development Code and consistent with the 
Preliminary PUD for Lot 4, Suffolk PUD 3rd Filing, and therefore approves the Final PUD as 
presented. 

 
J. ATTACHMENTS:   
 Attachment A -  Vicinity & Zoning Map 
 Attachment B  -  Project Narrative 
 Attachment C -  Site Plan 
 Attachment D  -  Building Elevations & Materials 
 Attachment E  -  Site Comparison 
 Attachment F  - Minor Subdivision 
 

 
35



This page intentionally left blank. 

 
36



R-LR-L

C-L

C-H C-H

R-M

PUD

23rd Street Rd

23rd Street Dr

24TH STREET RD

Centerplace Dr

44
th

 A
ve

43
rd

A
ve

nu
e

C
t

24th St

46
th

 A
ve

44
th

A
ve

nu
e

C
t

47
th

 Av
e

Zoning/Vicinity Map
Greeley Sports Bar Final PUD

Legend
Subject Site

StreetCenterlines
CLASSIFICATION

Expressway

Arterials

Local, Collectors

Unknown

City Limits

Building

Weld Parcels

0 580290
Feet [

PUD2019-0005

SITE

Attachment A

 
37

hathawabr
Typewritten Text
Attachment A 



This page intentionally left blank. 

 
38



NARRATIVE 

 

The owners of Kenny’s Steak house located on West 10th Street are proposing to build and operate a 
new restaurant/sports bar in the Centerplace Development in West Greeley. The owners are subdividing 
1.08 Acres from the 6.12-acre Zoned PUD which is part of the Homewood Suites Development in the 
Suffolks PUD. The subdivision is part of this application. The 1.08 acres includes 40 parking spaces with 
curb and gutter, existing lighting and landscaping. The owner intends to utilize the existing parking lot 
and provide 19 additional parking spaces. The restaurant will be newly constructed 26.5” single story 
building covering 4,700 square feet of area and will exceed the setback requirements required by the 
city.  

The restaurant will provide 167 seats for customers. The city code requires that restaurants provide 1 
parking space for every 4 customer seats. The total requirement for this restaurant will be 41.75 spaces 
and 59 spaces will be provided.  

The access to the restaurant will be a shred access with the existing Homewood Suites Hotel. A traffic 
study for the full development has been provided. Lighting for the existing parking lot has been provided 
with the original development and 2 additional light poles will be added to the additional parking lot. A 
photometric plan has been included with this submittal.  

The Architecture for the building meets or exceeds the city standards with multiple articulation and a 
variety of materials. The landscaping also exceeds the standards with a large variety of plant material 
exceeding the required 75% of living material which covers 34% of the lot and includes seat walls and 
retaining walls. The tree lawn was provided with the construction of the Homewood Suites along with 
the landscaping in the existing parking lot islands and along the south edge for screening. 

The overall concept will emphasize the following elements: 
 

1. Building form and character shall be of an appropriate scale. 
Design considerations shall include the mass, bulk and 
proportion of the structure including roofs, walls and openings. 

2. Building colors for primary and accessory structures shall be low-
reflective, subtle, neutral or earth tome colors with the intent of 
promoting a harmonious appearance of the structure. 

3. All elevations of structures will be detailed to provide visual 
interest and avoid unattractive views. 

4. Roofing materials, windows, building materials and finish will be 
coordinated to achieve a cohesive appearance. 

5. All heating air-conditioning, refrigeration, ventilation or other 
mechanical equipment located on the exterior of any building or 
structure shall be screened from view of abutting Public Street and 
residential properties. 

6. Site Lighting shall be in accordance with the City’s performance standards. 

Attachment B

 
39

hathawabr
Typewritten Text
Attachment B 

hathawabr
Typewritten Text



 

An overall system of pedestrian ways has been provided throughout the site to assure safe passage 
within. Attached sidewalks are provided on all local streets. All required street-side sidewalks have been 
located wholly within the right-of-way. 

Public  Facilities Providers: 

a. Police 

The City of Greeley Police Department will provide the law enforcement services within the 
development. 

b. Fire Protection 

The design of structures will comply with local building codes regarding fire protection. The 
development will be serviced by the City of Greeley Fire departments with service areas as determined 
to be appropriate.. 

c. Parks and Open Space 

The Developer shall be responsible for walkway and landscape improvements within the Private Drive 
right-of-way. 

 
40



 

Land-Use Statistic 
 

EXISTING ZONE PUD PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
PROPOSED ZONE  PUD  PLANNED  UNIT  DEVELOPMENT 
GROSS LAND  AREA 
NUMBER  OF BUILDINGS 

46,934 SF 
1 BUILDING 

1.08 AC 

LAND  USE:  RESTAURANT 
MAX BUILDING HEIGHT  26.5' 
MAX BUILDING STORIES 1 STORY 

Gross Area Coverage 
 

SQUARE FEET ACRES % OF 
BUILDING FOOTPRINT 
PATIO AREA 
LANDSCAPE AREA 
PAVED 
SIDEWALK 

 
TOTAL AREA 

4,700 
1480 

15,762 
21,843 
3,149 

 
46,934 

0.12 
0.03 
0.36 
0.50 
0.07 

 
1.08 

10% 
03% 
34% 
46% 
07% 

 
100% 

 

Parking Summary 
 

BASED ON MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS 
RESTAURANT  REQUIRED SPACES 
NUMBER  OF SEATS 
NUMBER OF SPACE REQUIRED 167/ 4 
NUMBER OF SPACES  PROVIDED 
NUMBER OF HANDICAP SPACES REQUIRED 

 
 
 

1 SPACE PER 4 SEATS 
167 SEATS 

41.75 SPACES 
59 SPACES 

2 SPACES 

NUMBER OF BICYCLE SPACES REQUIRED 41 . 75 *5% 3 SPACES 

 
41



This page intentionally left blank. 

 
42



Attachment C

43

hathawabr
Typewritten Text
Attachment C



 
44



45



 

 
46



This Erosion & Sediment Control Plan has been submitted to the City of  Greeley in
fulfillment of  the City Criteria.  Additional erosion and sediment control measures may
be needed if  unforeseen problems occur or if  the submitted plan does not function as
intended.  The requirements of  this plan shall run with the land and be the obligation of
the landowner until such time as the plan is properly completed, modified, or voided.
Note: This Erosion & Sediment Control Plan in and of  itself  does not fulfill the
requirements of  the Colorado Department of  Public Health: Stormwater Construction
Permit for a Stormwater Management Plan (SWMP).

Accepted By: _______________________________ ________________
          Landowner Date

Accepted By: _______________________________ ________________
          Professional Engineer Date

 

 
47



 

 
48



 

 
49



 

 
50



 

 
51



 
52



Attachment D

 
53

hathawabr
Typewritten Text
Attachment D



 
54



At
ta

ch
m

en
t E

 –
 S

ite
 C

om
pa

ris
on

 

   Cu
rr

en
t P

ro
po

se
d 

 
 

 
 

 
 

20
12

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

PU
D 

At
ta

ch
m

en
t E

 
55



This page intentionally left blank. 

 
56



Attachment F

 
57

hathawabr
Typewritten Text
Attachment F 



50 0 50 100

PREPARED BY:  THOMAS LAND SURVEYING, LLC.
2619 WEST 11TH STREET RD. SUITE 24
GREELEY, COLORADO, 80634
TELEPHONE:  (970) 304-0984

BASIS OF BEARING
THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 1, SUFFOLK SUBDIVISION, FIFTH FILING,
CITY OF GREELEY, COUNTY OF WELD, STATE OF COLORADO, IS
ASSUMED TO BEAR NORTH 89°47'56" EAST, AND IS MONUMENTED 
AS INDICATED.

BEING A RESUBDIVISION OF LOT 1, SUFFOLK SUBDIVISION FIFTH FILING,
BEING PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH,

RANGE 66 WEST OF THE 6TH P.M., CITY OF GREELEY,
COUNTY OF WELD, STATE OF COLORADO

DATE:  MAY 23, 2019
PROJECT: 1903.030
DRAWING: PLANSCAPES SUFFOLK 5TH FILING MINOR SUB

SUFFOLK MINOR SUBDIVISION

PAGE 2 OF 2

1 INCH = 50 FEET

VENTURESS, LLC
LOT 5, CENTERPLACE

THIRD FILING, FIRST REPLAT
ZONED PUD (PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPEMENT)

LOT 1
219,363 SQUARE FEET

5.04 ACRES
ZONED PUD (PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT)

1.87'
57.07'
42.39'
14.10'
27.98'

8.01'
20.00'
20.00'
20.00'
24.03'
30.00'
96.41'
83.32'
57.36'
66.67'
99.82'
79.56'

146.52'
56.29'
37.80'
18.27'
42.89'
32.37'
86.34'

N 00°00'50" W
S 89°57'08" W
S 44°59'10" E
N 44°59'10" W
N 89°57'08" W
S 90°00'00" W
N 75°29'26" W
N 14°30'34" W
S 75°29'26" W
N 89°15'30" E
N 00°44'30" W
N 89°15'30" E
N 49°46'45" E
N 00°12'04" W
S 00°12'04" E
S 49°46'45" W
S 89°15'30" W
N 89°52'29" E
S 00°09'46" E
N 90°00'00" E
S 00°35'45" E
S 87°41'19" E
S 02°31'52" E
S 89°26'08" W

LOT 2
46,931 SQUARE FEET

1.08 ACRES
ZONED PUD (PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT)

L1
L2
L3
L4
L5
L6
L7
L8
L9
L10
L11
L12
L13
L14
L15
L16
L17
L18
L19
L20
L21
L22
L23
L24

104.35'

CHICK--FIL-A, INC
LOT 4, CENTERPLACE

THIRD FILING, FIRST REPLAT
ZONED PUD (PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT)

30' EXCLUSIVE SANITARY SEWER
& WATER EASEMENT (REC.
NO. 3176444 05/04/2004)

10' U&DE
(REC. NO. 3176444
 05/04/2004)

20' EXCLUSIVE SANITARY
SEWER EASEMENT (REC.
NO. 3176444 05/04/2004)

20.00'

37.90'

30.00'

19.81'

L5

L1
C

2

36.24'20.63'

L6

L2

C
3

C
1

N
 14°30'34" W

N 75°29'38" E

63.46'
20.00'

62.18'
19.87'

165.51'

D
EXTER

 D
EVELO

PM
EN

T, IN
C

LO
T XA SU

FFO
LK SU

BD
IVISIO

N

FO
U

R
TH

 FILIN
G

ZO
N

ED
 PU

D
 (PLAN

N
ED

 U
N

IT D
EVELO

PM
EN

T)

L9 L8

L7

N
 00°14' 26" W

N 89°57'08" W
16.44'28.30'

140.70'

60.66'146.79'

437.29'

L4

L3

EXCLUSIVE WATER EASEMENT
(REC. NO. 3420568 09/19/2006)

PRIVATE ACCESS
EASEMENT (REC.
NO. 3178360 05/07/2004)

C7

S 89°49'57" E    207.45'

DRAINAGE EASEMENT
(REC. NO. 4113638 06/05/2015)

N 89°47'56" E

N 65
°4

7'1
3"

 W

C12

16 9.75'

LO
W

ES H
IW

, IN
C

LO
T 1A,  SU

FFO
LK SU

BD
IVISIO

N
SIXTH

 F ILIN
G

ZO
N

ED
 PU

D
 (PLAN

N
E

D
 U

N
IT D

EVELO
PM

EN
T

(R
E C

. N
O

.  31764 44 05/0 4/2004 ) L18

C
5

24.03'

L10

LINE TABLE
LENGTHBEARINGLINE

CURVE TABLE
CHORD

BEARINGCHORD
ARC

LENGTHRADIUSDELTACURVE
N 07°17'51" W
N 01°41'07" W
N 03°54'49" W
N 07°35'31" W
N 09°17'51" W
N 02°24'41" W
N 67°21'17" W
S 45°20'43" E
S 44°33'42" E
N 75°14'04" E
N 48°49'35" W
N 63°22'47" W

123.79'
28.13'

9.98'
98.32'
74.04'
24.41'

103.96'
10.56'
35.13'
18.68'
40.51'
23.23'

124.13'
28.13'

9.98'
98.55'
74.14'
24.41'

106.72'
11.74'
39.34'
18.88'
41.00'
24.23'

490.00'
490.00'
490.00'
410.00'
410.00'
410.00'
135.00'

7.44'
24.15'
37.31'
76.27'
24.19'

14°30'51"
03°17'23"
01°10'00"
13°46'21"
10°21'40"
03°24'41"
45°17'31"
90°23'16"
93°19'34"
28°59'22
30°47'52"
57°23'56"

C1
C2
C3
C4
C5
C6
C7
C8
C9
C10
C11
C12

27 .90'
30 .00'

30' X 24.03' EXCLUSIVE WATER &
SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT
(REC. NO. 4113638 06/05/2015) C

6
C

4

N 89°47'56" E 136.40'

20
.0

0'

L24

L11

L17

L12

N
 0 0°44 '49" W
96 .85'

44.50'35.50'

161.28'

15. 00'

(80'  R
IG

H
T -O

F-W
AY)

46 TH
 A

VEN
U

E

S 89°18'21" W

C11

N
 0 0°41' 39" W

24
.99

' 39. 54'

C9

C8 L2 1

L20

L19

18.35'117.66'
136.01'

C10

CROSS ACCESS AND
PARKING EASEMENT
BY THIS PLAT

L23

L22

N 89°47'56" E
93.72'

20' EXCLUSIVE
SANITARY SEWER
EASEMENT (REC. NO. 4113638
06/05/2015)

SHAN I, LLC
TRACT A, SUFFOLK THIRD FILING

ZONED PUD (PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT)

(BASIS OF BEARING)

275.00'

20.00'

L14

20'

L16

L15

L13

15. 00'

507.36'

15' PUBLIC SERVICE
COMPANY OF COLORADO
EASEMENT (REC. NO. 4018002
05/22/2014)

S 00°14' 26" E

G
R

E
E LEY PA

C
IF IC

A W
ELLA G

E, LLC
LO

T 4 ,
C

EN
T ER

PLA
C

E N
O

R
TH

 SU
B D

IVISIO
N

SEC
O

N
D

 FILIN
G

, FIR
S

T R
EP LAT

ZO
N

E D
 C

-H
 (C

O
M

M
ER

C
IAL H

IG
H

 IN
TEN

SITY)

FOUND #4 REBAR WITH
1" ORANGE PLASTIC
CAP, STAMPED LS 33642

FOUND 1" BRASS TAG 
WITH NAIL, STAMPED
LS 33642

SET 24" #4 REBAR WITH 
1" YELLOW PLASTIC CAP,
STAMPED THOMAS
PLS 38353

SUBJECT BOUNDARY

EASEMENT

RIGHT-OF-WAY

CENTERLINEN 89°45'34" E

N 89°45'34" E

N 64°55'59" E

2.51'

43.00'

91.78'

554.80'
208.95'

CENTERPLACE NORTH COMMERCIAL I OWNERS ASSOCIATION
CENTERPLACE NORTH SUBDIVISION

SECOND FILING, FIRST REPLAT
ZONED C-H (COMMERCIAL HIGH INTENSITY)

FOUND #4 REBAR
WITH 1" YELLOW 
PLASTIC CAP, STAMPED
LS 38480, S 00°14'26" E
0.57' FROM CALCULATED
POSITION (NOT ACCEPTED)

S 00°14' 26" E

N
 00°14' 26" W

345.31'

345.33'

345.28'

LEGEND

20' D
R

AIN
AG

E EASEM
EN

T
(R

EC
. N

O
. 3977396 11/12/2013)

 
58



Planning Commission Summary 
ZON2018-0005 
September 10, 2019 Page 1 of 9

PLANNING COMMISSION SUMMARY 

ITEM: Rezone from PUD (Planned Unit Development) to C-H 
(Commercial High Intensity) 

FILE NUMBER: ZON2018-0005 

PROJECT: 2600 36th Avenue – Gateway Self-Serve Storage Units Rezone 

LOCATION: 2600 36th Avenue 

APPLICANT: Jeff Engelman 

CASE PLANNER: Darrell Gesick, Planner III 

PLANNING COMMISSION HEARING DATE:   September 10, 2019 

PLANNING COMMISSION FUNCTION: 
The Planning Commission shall consider the staff report, along with testimony and comments 
made by the applicant and the public and shall then make a recommendation to the City Council 
regarding the application in the form of a finding based on the review criteria in Section 
18.30.050(c)(3). 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The City of Greeley is considering a request from Jeff Engelman, owner of Gateway Self-Serve 
Storage Units, to rezone approximately 5.50 acres of property, including adjacent right-of-way, 
located at 2600 36th Avenue, from PUD (Planned Unit Development) to C-H (Commercial High 
Intensity) (see Attachments A, B, C, and D). 

A. REQUEST
The applicant is requesting approval of a rezone (see Attachment C).

B. STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Approval.

C. LOCATION Abutting Zoning: 
North:  PUD (Planned Unit Development)  
South:  PUD  
East:   PUD 
West:  R-H (Residential High Density) and C-H (Commercial High 

Intensity) 

 
59



Planning Commission Summary 
ZON2018-0005 
September 10, 2019 Page 2 of 9

Surrounding Land Uses:  
North:  Car Dealership 
South:  Highway 34 Bypass 
East:    Car Dealerships 
West:   Car Dealership and Multi-Family 

Site Characteristics: 
The subject site is currently developed with 19 self-serve storage units and 
one residential unit that also functions as a manager’s office.  The site 
consists of concrete drive aisles, wrought-iron fencing, and landscaping on 
the perimeter of the property (see Attachment E).   

D. BACKGROUND
The subject site was annexed into the City of Greeley and zoned PUD, in 1978, as part of the
Southwest Greeley Annexation No. 1 (File No. Z 2:78).  In 1981, a conceptual PUD (File No.
Z 9:81) was established for an area west of 35th Avenue, east of 47th Avenue, north of Highway 34
Bypass, and south of 24th Street.  The primary uses called out for the PUD were for “Tech Industry”
type uses.  In 1982, a Final PUD was approved for oil and gas development on the entire PUD
(File No. Z 8:82).  When the property owner at that time did submit for the Final PUD for oil and
gas development, they did so on the entire PUD instead of specific locations within the PUD.
When this Final PUD was approved, it in effect, voided the previous concept PUD for “Tech
Industry” uses on the site.  When the applicant discovered this, another Conceptual PUD and Final
PUD occurred to correct the error (File NO. Z 22:84).  This Final PUD approved specific locations
for oil and gas development, and the conceptual Plan called out land uses, such as commercial,
high tech industrial, and multi-family on the balance of the property not approved for oil and gas
development.  This PUD was known as the Gateway Park PUD.  Yet, another amendment
occurred, in 1985, where some more uses were added to the overall PUD (File No. Z 23:85).  Over
time the Gateway PUD developed as called out in the conceptual PUD, has develop under new
PUD’s like Suffolk and Centerplace, or was rezoned to traditional zoning districts, such as, C-H,
R-M, R-H, and C-L.

The subject site was approved for all uses allowed in the C-2 zone district, plus the following C-3 
and C-4 uses: hotels and motels, theaters, convention halls, restaurants, bars, private and 
commercial recreation facilities, retail stores, and gasoline service stations.  Storage uses were not 
included.  In 1995, a combined amended Conceptual and Final PUD was proposed and approved 
by City Council to allow for self-serve storage units and a residential unit for an on-site manager 
(File No. PUD 4:95).  The zoning classifications were changed, in 1998, when the Development 
Code was revised.  The existing zoning of C-L (Commercial Low Intensity) is the modern 
equivalent to C-2 and C-H (Commercial High Intensity) is the equivalent to C-3 and C-4.   

In 1999 and 2000, a portion of 36th Avenue right-of-way was vacated (File No. V 6:99 and V/D 
7:00).  The right-of-way was west of and adjacent to the southern portion of the subject site.  The 
eastern half of the right-of-way was transferred to the property owner at 2600 36th Avenue and the 
western half of the right-of-way was transferred to the property owner at 2701 36th Avenue.  The 
property owner at 2701 36th Avenue has since developed a car dealership, utilizing the area gained 
from the right-of-way vacation.   

 
60



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2018-0005 
September 10, 2019 Page 3 of 9 
 

With this application, the property owner at 2600 36th Avenue would like to utilize the area that 
was gained from the vacation and rezone the subject site from PUD to C-H with the desire to build 
a 3,900-square-foot self-serve storage unit on the area that was vacated in 2000 (see Attachment 
F).  Under the current Development Code, in order for the City to consider a proposed PUD 
amendment for the subject site, the applicant is required to provide written approval of the 
proposed amendment from 100% of the property owners within the PUD to the City.  PUD’s are 
viewed as a contract between all property owners within the PUD area.  If the applicant is unable 
to acquire such approvals, the applicant would not be able to submit the application and would not 
be able to maximize the full development potential for the site.  The applicant attempted to acquire 
the necessary signatures and was unable to obtain them.  The proposed rezone of the property from 
PUD to C-H would avoid timeliness issues associated with amending the PUD and avoid having 
to acquire the necessary owner approvals.  The applicant would like to rezone the site to C-H, 
which would allow the site to be development under Development Code standards for the C-H 
zone district.  This would allow the applicant to get approvals administratively from the City for 
the additional building, rather than getting permission from adjacent owners and having to go 
through a public hearing process.   
 
Under the current Development Code Standards, the subject use would be required to obtain 
approvals  through the Use by Special Review (USR) process if the site was currently zoned C-H.  
Since the site was approved under a different process, a Final PUD in this case, the existing use 
would be considered a procedurally conforming site if the rezone is approved.  For example, a use 
which requires USR approval would be considered conforming if it existed prior to the effective 
date of the Development Code and is in conformance in all other respects, only lacking the benefit 
of an otherwise required review process.  This would mean that the existing use would not have to 
have USR approval to continue and the proposed additional building that the applicant is 
requesting would follow the USR standards, if the rezone is approved.   
 
With the proposed rezone request, a minor USR Amendment has been submitted for the additional 
storage unit (USR2018-0019) and is being reviewed concurrently with this proposed rezone.  The 
requested USR Amendment would be reviewed and approved administratively and would only be 
approved if the rezoning is approved.   
 
APPROVAL CRITERIA 

 
Development Code Section 18.30.050 Rezoning Procedures 
 
For the purpose of establishing and maintaining sound, stable, and desirable development within 
the City, the rezoning of land is to be discouraged and allowed only under circumstances provided 
for in this Section [of the Code].  This policy is based on the opinion of the City Council that the 
City’s zoning map is a result of a detailed and comprehensive appraisal of the City’s present and 
future needs regarding land use allocation and other zoning considerations, and, as such, should 
not be amended unless to correct manifest errors or because of changed or changing conditions 
in a particular area of the City in general.  
 
The review criteria found in Section 18.30.050(c)(3) of the Development Code shall be used to 
evaluate the zoning amendment application.  
 

 
61



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2018-0005 
September 10, 2019 Page 4 of 9 
 

a)   Has the area changed, or is it changing to such a degree that it is in the public interest 
to rezone the subject property to encourage development or redevelopment of the 
area?  
 

 Staff Comment:  Over the years several properties within the Gateway PUD have 
been rezoned from PUD to traditional zone districts such as C-H, R-
M, R-H, and C-L.  West of and adjacent to the subject site, the area 
was rezoned to R-H, which allowed the property owner the ability 
to develop the site with multi-family units.  In 2014, a portion of that 
property was subdivided and rezoned to C-H, and developed with a 
car dealership.  Further to the northwest of the subject site, 
approximately 55 acres of land was rezoned from PUD to C-H, R-
H, R-M, and C-L.  This area has developed with restaurants, 
medical, office, assisted living, and townhomes, with some land still 
left to develop.     

 
The rezone is not necessarily needed to encourage development or 
redevelopment in the area.  The subject site has been developed as 
called out in the original PUD and subsequent amendments.  
However, the applicant would need to gain approval of 100% of the 
property owners within the portion of the PUD that the subject site 
is located within for the additional building that the applicant wishes 
to build.  If the applicant is unable to acquire such approvals, the 
applicant would not be able to maximize the full development 
potential for the site.  In this case, the applicant tried to obtain the 
necessary signatures and was unable to do so and does not believe 
that they would be able to gain 100% approval of the adjacent 
owners anytime in the near future.  The applicant would like to 
rezone the site to C-H, which would allow the site to be developed 
under the Development Code standards for the C-H zone.  This 
would allow the applicant to get approvals administratively for the 
additional building, rather than getting permission from adjacent 
owners and having to go through a public hearing process.   

 
    Leaving the property in the PUD zone district could limit the 

opportunity for the applicant to add the additional storage building 
if the applicant is not able to acquire the necessary approvals from 
adjacent property owners within the PUD.  Planning staff concludes 
that it is in the public’s interest to rezone the subject property to a 
more traditional zone district, allowing the potential for a more 
efficient development option for the property owner.   

 
    This request complies with this criterion.   
 

 

 
62



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2018-0005 
September 10, 2019 Page 5 of 9 
 

b) Has the existing zoning been in place for at least fifteen (15) years without substantial 
development resulting and does the existing zoning appear to be obsolete, given 
development trends?  

 
 Staff Comment: The subject property has been zoned PUD since 1995, a total of 24 

years.  Until a portion of 36th Avenue was vacated and given to the 
subject property owner, there was no potential for additional 
development on the subject site.  Since obtaining the additional land, 
the applicant has the potential to add one additional self-serve 
storage building to the subject site.  Although the existing zoning is 
not necessarily obsolete, the proposed C-H zone district would avoid 
timeliness issues associated with amending the PUD and would 
avoid having to acquire the necessary adjacent property owner 
approvals. 

 
    Development trends over the last several years have shown a 

demand for self-serve storage units.  The applicant believes that the 
additional storage building would allow the business to stay 
competitive with other newer facilities in the community.    

 
This request complies with this criterion.  

 
c)  Are there clerical or technical errors to correct?  

 
Staff Comment: There are no clerical or technical errors to correct.   
 
 This criterion is not applicable to this request.  

 
d) Are there detrimental environmental impacts, such as flood plains, inadequate 

drainage, slopes, unstable soils, etc., that may affect future development of this site 
and which may not have been considered during the original zoning of the property? 

 
Staff Comment: There are no known detrimental environmental conditions existing 

on the site. 
 

 This criterion is not applicable to this request.  
 

e)   Is the proposed rezoning necessary in order to provide land for a community related 
use which was not anticipated at the time of adoption of the City’s Comprehensive 
Plan; or have the policies of the City changed to the extent that a rezoning is 
warranted?  

 
Staff Comment: The proposed rezoning is not necessary in order to provide land for 

a community related use.   
 
 This criterion is not applicable to this request.  
 

 
63



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2018-0005 
September 10, 2019 Page 6 of 9 
 

f) What is the potential impact of the proposed rezoning upon the immediate 
neighborhood and the city as a whole (including potential noise and environmental 
impacts, visual impacts, the provision of City services such as police, fire, water, 
sewer, and pedestrian systems and parks and recreational facilities)? 

    
Staff Comment: It is not anticipated that the proposed C-H zoning would create 

significant impacts on the subject property, adjacent land uses, or 
the City as a whole.  The proposed rezoning does not significantly 
vary from the current allowed zoning. 

   
Any potential noise created by future development would be 
regulated by the Municipal Code.  There should not be any 
environmental impacts associated with this request.  The appropriate 
buffering would be required to be provided, which lessens any 
potential visual impacts to adjacent uses.  City services such as 
water, sewer, police, and fire are already available to the site. 
Sidewalks exist along the west side of the property.  The applicant’s 
current plans for the property should not increase the intensity of its 
current use in a negative manor; and, therefore, should not 
negatively impact the neighborhood.  If the property were rezoned, 
plans for the additional self-serve storage unit would be reviewed by 
staff for compliance with Development Code criteria.  Additional 
information regarding City services can be found further in this 
report in Sections E, F, and G.  

 
The proposal complies with this criterion.  
 

g) Is there clear and convincing evidence that the proposed rezoning will be consistent 
with the policies and goals of the City’s Comprehensive Plan and comply with the 
applicable zoning overlay requirements? 

 
The following City of Greeley Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan policies apply to this 
request: 

 
Comprehensive Plan Policy Objective ED-2.4, Business Attraction 
Attract and retain business and industry that align with the City’s target industries and 
support economic diversity.   
 

Staff Comment:  The proposed rezone, as submitted, would allow a local business to 
expand, which may positively impact the success of the business. 
The proposed use would also support economic diversity in the area, 
currently there are no other storage units within the immediate area.   

 
   This request complies with this Comprehensive Plan policy.  
 
 
 

 
64



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2018-0005 
September 10, 2019 Page 7 of 9 
 

Comprehensive Plan Policy Objective GC-6.3, Neighborhood Character  
Maintain, enhance, and protect the character of established neighborhoods while 
recognizing the need for established neighborhoods to evolve to meet city needs. 
 
Staff Comment: The proposed rezone should not impact the character of the established 

neighborhood.  The site is already existing and the proposed storage 
building that the applicant wishes to build would be built to be 
compatible with the existing storage buildings on the site in relation to 
color, size, and materials.   

 
The proposal complies with this criterion.  

 
h) What is the potential impact of the proposed rezoning upon an approved Zoning 

Suitability Plan for the property?     
 

Staff Summary:  The proposed Zoning Suitability Plan submitted with this application 
demonstrates on a conceptual level that the site should be able to 
develop in accordance with the Development Code (see Attachment F).    
 
This criterion is not applicable to this request.    

 
E. PHYSICAL SITE CHARACTERISTICS 

1. SUBDIVISION HISTORY 
The subject property is known as Lots 6, 7, and 8 of Block 1, Gateway Park Filing No. 3 –
First Replat (Rec. no. 02237135, File No. S 7:90).  
 

2. HAZARDS 
Staff is unaware of any potential hazards that presently exist on the site.   
 

3. WILDLIFE 
The subject site is not located in an area identified for moderate or high wildlife impacts.  
There are no known impacts that would occur to wildlife if the site is rezoned.  
 

4. FLOODPLAIN  
The proposed rezone boundary is not located within the 100-year floodplain or floodway, 
according to the adopted Federal Emergency Management Administration (FEMA) flood 
data.  
 

5. DRAINAGE AND EROSION 
The existing drainage patterns are expected to continue to follow the existing lay of the 
land.  Current, historic drainage patterns on the subject property has drained from the south 
to the north.  The subject site currently has internal drive aisles that have been designed to 
direct flow away from the storage units and direct water to an existing detention pond north 
of the subject site.  The proposed storage building impacts are minor and do not 
dramatically disturb current drainage conditions.  The imperviousness added to the site 
required a concrete lined trickle channel to be added to the swale along the west side of the 
property.   

 
65



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2018-0005 
September 10, 2019 Page 8 of 9 
 

 
6. TRANSPORTATION 

The proposed rezone should not negativity impact the traffic flow in the area.  It is 
anticipated that there would be an incremental increase in traffic of about 3% of the 
current total traffic generated by this use.  Typical trips generated for the subject site are 
approximately 130 trips per day.  It is anticipated that 134 trips per day would occur with 
the proposed new storage unit.  A Traffic Impact Memo was submitted, reviewed, and 
evaluated by the City of Greeley Engineering Development Review Department, and no 
additional impacts are anticipated to be generated by the proposed rezone.  

F. SERVICES 
1. WATER 

An existing 8” waterline is located on the western part of the subject site and is currently 
being utilized by the applicant.  No additional improvements to the water service is required 
as part of the rezone or the minor USR amendment.       
 

2. SANITATION  
There is an existing sanitary sewer line located on the western part of the subject site and 
is currently being utilized by the applicant.  No additional improvements to the sanitary 
sewer service are required as part of the rezone or the minor USR amendment.       

 
3. EMERGENCY SERVICES 

The subject site is serviced by the City of Greeley Fire and Police.  The closest fire stations, 
Fire Station #5 and #2, are located approximately one mile from the subject site.  

 
4. PARKS/OPEN SPACES 

No public parks or additional public open space areas are proposed with this request and 
the request would not be creating any private parks or open space.  The proposed rezone 
should have little to no impact on parks or open space in the community.  

 
5. SCHOOLS 

No schools are proposed or located within the site.  However, the nearest school, Greeley 
West High School, is located approximately one-half mile to north of the subject site.  
     

G. NEIGHBORHOOD IMPACTS 
1. VISUAL 

No visual impacts are anticipated with this rezone request.  Any development plan 
application for the property would be reviewed for compliance with the City’s 
Development Code requirements regarding visual impacts.   

 
2. NOISE 

No noise impacts are anticipated with the rezone request.  Any potential noise created by 
future development will be regulated by the Municipal Code.   

 
 
 

 
66



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2018-0005 
September 10, 2019 Page 9 of 9 
 

 
H. PUBLIC NOTICE AND COMMENT 

Neighborhood notices were mailed to surrounding property owners on August 22, 2019, per 
Development Code requirements.  A sign was posted on the site on August 23, 2019.  No 
comments have been received.  

 
I. MINERIAL ESTATE OWNER NOTIFICATION 

Mineral notice is not required for a rezone request.   
 

J. PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDED MOTION 
Based on the application received and the Project Summary and accompanying analysis, the 
Planning Commission find that the proposed rezone from PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
to C-H (Commercial High Intensity) meets the applicable Development Code criteria, Sections 
18.30.050(c)(3) a, b, f, g, and h; and, therefore, recommend approval of the rezone to the City 
Council. 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment A – Zoning/Vicinity Map 
Attachment B – Photo Aerial 
Attachment C – Narrative 
Attachment D – Property Rezone Boundary Map 
Attachment E – Site Analysis Map 
Attachment F – Zoning Suitability Map 
Attachment G – Notification Boundary Map 
 
 

 
67



This page intentionally left blank. 

 
68



PUD 

%) St 

r:t• 

   

 

h-St 

  

ZoningNicinity Map 
2600 36th Avenue - Gateway Self-Storage 

Cityof 

Greeley 

.c 

01§P 
PUD 

Site 

C H 

28th-St 

PUD 

 

R-L 

I-L 

      

 

Legend 

StreetCenterlines 

CLASSIFICATION 

- Expressway 

- Arterials 

 Local, Collectors 

 Unknown 

City Limits 

Building 

I I Weld Parcels 

 

500 

ZON2018-0005 

1,000 

    

Feet 

   

     

Attachment A

 
69



This page intentionally left blank. 

 
70



Dcyill y_ 

� ����n�����G�reel ey

egen 

treetCenterlines 

LASSIACATION 

Expressway 

Arterials 

Local. Collectors , 

Unknown 

City Limits 

__, Weld Parcels 

Ortgin Cache Mas 
0 250 

ZON2018-0005 

500 n 
Feet �, 

 
71

scheffev
Typewritten Text
Attachment B

scheffev
Typewritten Text

scheffev
Typewritten Text



This page intentionally left blank. 

 
72



October 16, 2018 

Gateway Self Storage 
Rezoning — Project Narrative 

AN EMPLOYEE OWNED COMPANY 

VBASELINE.  

  

Engineering • Planning • Surveying 

  

Introduction 
Gateway Self Storage is an existing development located north of State Highway 34 and east of 36th 
Ave. in Greeley. It is bordered on the north by a parking lot, on the east by Ghent Chevrolet Auto 
Dealership and Nissan/VW Auto Dealership, and on the west by John Elway Auto Dealership. The 
site is accessed from 36" Ave. Recently, a portion of 36th Ave was vacated, from which a 30' of 
Right of Way was added to the Gateway Property. The owner wishes to develop this additional 
property to include a 4,125 square foot storage building. His intent is to build a new standard 
storage unit building so that he can move materials from an existing building into the new building 
for the purpose of converting an existing building into a climate-control building in the future. This 
will allow his business keep up with current market demands for climate controlled rental units. 

The subject property is a portion of the Majors Self Storage Unit Planned Unit Development that 
was approved in 1995. Since approval, portions of the property were developed as planned, while 
portions were sold to neighboring property owners: Ghent Chevrolet, and Elway. The owner of the 
remaining property wishes to re-zone the remaining property from PUD to C-H, Commercial High 
Intensity, to allow expansion of his business in compliance with the C-H Zoning Code rather than in 
compliance with the PUD. 

Previously, this applicant submitted a change of zone request with the intent to build a new office, 
ADA accessible public restrooms, and rental units that would be accessed from a central corridor 
and would be heated in the winter and cooled in the summer. However, this alternative proved to be 
prohibitive due to infrastructure constraints. This re-submittal eliminates the need to remove a 
portion of mature landscape treatments to extend sewer and water utilities to the new building. 
There is no need or requirement for additional parking spaces, and setbacks can be respected with 
the revised plan. 

This change of zone request is accompanied by a full Use By Special Review application. The USR 
plans provide a complete development scheme for the subject property. The owner reports that the 
property currently has difficulties with drainage during major storm events. The USR plans 
document existing spot elevations that prove stormwater enters the site from 36th Ave. and 
discharges into the stormwater detention pond located adjacent to the site, rather than downstream 
into a regional pond as intended. The proposed grading plan will effectively correct this by re-
building the entry drive, thus directing off-site drainage past the entry drive and will not continue to 
inundate the existing system on the Gateway site. A drainage report is provided to document this 
finding and calculate new and existing on-site storm water volumes. 

Pedestrian access, Circulation and Connectivity: 
The Gateway Self Storage site is located on the north side of State Highway 34, and east of 36th 
Avenue. Facility access is from 36th  Ave., an improved cul-de-sac that serves the subject property 
and the John Elway dealership to the west. 36th  Ave is an improved local roadway section. The 
facility currently has approximately 77,100 square feet in storage space within 19 buildings. A 
small manager residence and office provides an additional 1,735 square feet. There are no more 

Corporate Headquarters Rocky Mountains Northern Colorado 
112 N Rubey Drive, Suite 210 1169 Hilltop Pkwy, Suite 204, PO Box 770152 4007 S Lincoln Avenue, Suite 405 
Golden, Colorado 80403 Steamboat Springs, Colorado 80477 Loveland, Colorado 80537 
Ph 303.940.9966 Ph 970.879.1825 Ph 970.353.7600 
Fax 303.940.9959 Fax 303.940.9959 Fax 866.679.4864  

73

scheffev
Typewritten Text
Attachment C

scheffev
Typewritten Text

scheffev
Typewritten Text



Pagel 2 
Gateway Self Storage 
Rezoning — Project Narrative 

than 2 employees at the site at any given time. The site is accessed by vehicles at two locations 
along the west property line from 36the Ave. There is an existing pedestrian sidewalk within the 
36th  Ave. ROW. The site itself is fully fenced for security purposes. 

Review Criteria 
The following criteria shall be used to evaluate a rezoning request: 

1. Has the area changed, or is it changing to such a degree that is in the public interest to 
rezone the subject property to encourage development or redevelopment of the area? 

The immediate area has seen changes with the recent development of the Elway 
dealership. The Elway dealership effectively changed the zone from PUD to C-H 
Zoning for a car dealership use in place of planned multi-family development. The 
vacation of a portion of 36" Ave. also occurred since the original PUD was approved. 
This provides an opportunity to expand the Storage Business to include climate-
controlled storage units, which are needed to remain competitive with the Self-Storage 
business model. 

The change in the area does not, by itself, justify  the expansion of the business, but the 
changes allow an opportunity for this business to respond to changing market 
demands for more sophisticated self-storage options. It is in the public interest to allow 
a business in this urban setting to respond to changing market demands rather than 
letting the business decline while competitors outside of the City Limits grow by 
attracting potential would-be Gateway customers. It is unknown how much the 
planned multi-family development, had it continued, would have supported the 
Gateway business. 

2. Has the existing zoning been in place for at least fifteen (15) years without substantial 
development resulting, and does the existing zoning appear to be obsolete, given 
development trends? 

The existing PUD zoning has been in place since 1995, which was 23 years ago. The 
PUD plan that was approved at the time demonstrated the Gateway Storage business 
would be adjacent to an open tract (Lot 5), the full 36" Ave. Right of Way, and 
adjacent to the Longview Townhomes. Lot 5 is now developed as a parking lot, and 
half of the planned Longview Townhomes property was re-zoned to allow for the 
Elway Dealership. Portions of 36" Ave was vacated, leaving an opportunity for 
Gateway to expand the business. This activity renders the original PUD obsolete. 

3. Are there clerical or technical errors to correct? There are no clerical or technical 
errors. 

4. Are there detrimental environmental impacts, such as flood plains, presence of irrigation 
ditches, inadequate drainage, slopes, unstable soils, etc., that may affect future 
development of this site and which may not have been considered during the original 
zoning of the property? 

 
74



Pagel 3 
Gateway Self Storage 
Rezoning — Project Narrative 

Drainage impacts were not adequately evaluated with the PUD approval, and 
subsequent approval of the Elway Dealership. The Gateway property owner has 
experienced ponding and collection of storm water on his property with the 
development of adjacent uses — particularly the Elway Dealership on the west. The 
property owner has made improvements to the site to improve drainage conditions on 
his property that have proven to help with the problem, but not relieve the conditions 
completely. The property owner reports that drainage impacts became much worse 
with the development of the Elway Dealership. In fact, field survey of existing 
conditions demonstrate that storm water enters the Gateway property from the Elway 
site at the entry drive, rather than passing the entry to continue downstream as 
projected. The drainage issues will not be satisfied by a rezone and in fact, they can 
be resolved without a rezone. However, a rezone will allow the Gateway owner to make 
additional improvements with the approval of this rezone request and associated Site 
Development Plan (USR) for the planned new building. The Gateway owner wishes to 
re-build his entry drive at the same time as the new construction of the additional 
building. There is a cost savings in doing the two construction projects at the same 
time, under the same engineering, plan review, and permitting activities. 

5. Is the proposed rezoning necessary in order to provide land for a community-related use 
which was not anticipated at the time of adoption of the City's Comprehensive Plan, or 
have the policies of the City changed to the extent that a rezoning is warranted? 

The rezone will allow for reasonable expansion of the business — to respond to recent 
market demands, and can be accomplished in compliance with the City Zoning Code. 
At the time the PUD was approved, there was a single owner of the entire PUD plan. 
Today, portions of the PUD have been sold — any amendments to the PUD plan would 
require approval by neighboring landowners who are also within the PUD. Approval 
has been attempted, but agreement by all parties has been unsuccessful-not because 
the neighboring properties object to the proposed improvements, but because the 
neighboring property owners have requested access into the Gateway development in 
return. Access through the Gateway business can not occur for security reasons. 

The Greeley zoning code for C-H zoning is actually more restrictive in terms of 
setbacks and open space calculations than the PUD is. Expansion of this business 
under the straight zoning code appears to be the most reasonable approach. 

It appears City policies for requiring all landowners within a PUD to approve of a 
PUD amendment has changed, as evidenced in recent approval of development of the 
neighboring property without full concurrence from all property owners. This may 
have been an oversight, but it has occurred none the less. The ability for private 
landowners to place unreasonable conditions on joint approval should be changed if it 
hasn't already. 

6. What is the potential impact of the proposed rezoning upon the immediate neighborhood 
and the City as a whole (including potential noise and environmental impacts, visual 
impacts, the provision of the City services such as police, fire, water, sewer, streets and 
pedestrian systems and parks and recreational facilities? 

 
75



Pagel 4 
Gateway Self Storage 
Rezoning — Project Narrative 

The rezoning of the property will have no impact upon the immediate neighborhood as 
it relates to noise, environmental impacts and provision of City services. The 
construction of a new building will change the visual quality adjacent to the Elway 
dealership, but not in a negative way. Planned architectural features and landscape 
treatments will improve the overall visual quality of the immediate area. 

7. Is there clear and convincing evidence that the proposed rezoning will be consistent with 
the policies and goals of the City's Comprehensive Plan and comply with any applicable 
zoning overlay requirements? 

The site is situated in an area designated as 
"Employment, Industrial and Commercial Areas" in the 
Imagine Greeley Land Use Guidance Map. The 
proposed change of zone, which is consistent with the 
previous zoning district (PUD), will allow for increase 
service by an existing business to an existing 
neighborhood in Greeley. 

The plan further describes Goals and Objectives 
regarding Growth and City Form (GC) as it relates to infill development. Specifically, 
with the goal towards reduced land consumption and costs of providing public 
infrastructure and services. The change of zone will not deviate from the intent of the 
Comprehensive Plan or the overall land use as was established in the PUD zoning 
district. The previous zoning designation (PUD) and proposed rezone to C-H have 
identical land use objectives. The change of zone will allow for increased intensity of 
an existing use and will not negatively affect the established neighborhoods in the 
immediate area. 

"Special Considerations: In established neighborhoods, infill and redevelopment 
should be consistent with the character of the existing neighborhood and respect the 
scale and mass of surrounding buildings. Where needed or desired by residents, 
design guidelines, design standards, and other development regulations should be 
considered as tools to preserve neighborhood character (while still allowing for the 
diversification of housing types and reinvestment). "(Imagine Greeley, pp 101) 

The development that will occur as a result of the rezone will be consistent with the 
original intent for the property and is compatible with adjacent uses. 

8. What is the potential impact of the proposed rezoning upon an approved zoning 
suitability plan for the property? 
There is no existing Zoning Suitability Plan for the subject site. A Zoning Suitability 
Plan is provided for the change of zone application, including the required 
components. The new Zoning Suitability Map shows property boundary, location and 
acreage for the existing commercial uses and square footage, existing roadways and 
accesses, drainage patterns and existing detention pond, proposed and existing open 
space and trail in conformance with the Greeley Municipal Code 18.16.060. There are 

 
76



Pagel 5 
Gateway Self Storage 
Rezoning — Project Narrative 

no existing residential uses or oil and gas facilities within or adjacent to the area. The 
proposed rezoning will support expansion of the existing commercial use on the 
property without impact to approved (PUD) development on the property. The required 
elements of the requested zoning can be met if the rezoning is approved, including the 
following: 
a. Self-Storage is a permitted use in the C-H Zoning District with a Design review. 
b. The Use will require a Special Review application, due to the size of the property 

(greater than 5-acres). 
c. Hours of operation for the Office is Monday through Friday, 8:30 AM to 5:30 PM, 

Saturdays from 8:30 AM to 2:30 PM. There is 24-hour gate access. A security 
service patrols the facility nightly. 

d. Open Space: 20% of site or Option 16 (approved public art, Section 18.38.100) 
e. Existing Sidewalk is 5' wide attached on both sides of 36th  Ave. 
f Adequate parking —per 18.42 
g. Landscape, Buffering and Perimeter Treatments can be accomplished 
h. Maximum lot coverage is 80% 
L Building Structure setbacks for the new building will be 25' for sides adjacent to 

streets. (Note, an existing building is 15' from the property line adjacent to State 
Highway 34, which would not be in compliance with the requirements for the 
requested zoning code.) 

9. If the proposed rezoning is for placing the property within the H-A, Holding Agricultural 
District, the following criteria shall be considered in the evolution of the proposed zoning 
amendment: 

The proposed rezoning is not H-A. 

10.If the proposed rezoning is for placing property with the C-D conservation District, the 
following criteria shall be considered in the evaluation of the proposed zoning 
amendment: The proposed rezoning is not within C-D conservation District. 

 
77



This page intentionally left blank. 

 
78



z 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
30 0 30 60 

1-1  
OH FEET) 

1 INCH w SO FT 

LEGEND 

C)  FOUND MONUMENT AS DESCRIBED 
SUBJECT BOUNDARY 
EASEMENT LINE 
PROPERTY LINE 

NVW LLC 
ZONED PUD 

FOUND NO. 5 REBAR 

/ -1" RED PLAST. CAP 
"PLS 27269" 

15' UTIUTY EASEMENT 

NVW LLC 
ZONED PUD 

rye
 \

3
77

—
 
IS

T
A

K
IS

H
EN

T
 O

F
 20

1/
11

1G
riw

g
. 
7

/ 2
3

/2
01

9 1 

ND 

I
t 
1 
1 
1 
1 

1 

1 

1 
1 
1 
1 

10010 NO. 4 REBAR 

 

FOUND NO. 4 REBAR 

FOUND NO 4 REBAR 
I" YELLOW PLAST CAR 
'PLS 7242' 

LIMITS OF 
REZONING —

 

30' WATER & SEWER EASEMENT 
FOUND No. 4 REBAR WI 

1- YELLOW PLAST CAP-\ 
'P1.5 38353'  

FOUND NO, 4 REBAR 

L-86.43% 

h=90•02'30' 
01.41 Iron-  E 

77.81' 

‘FOUND NO. 4 REBAR 
r YELLOW MAST. CAP 
'PIS 7242' 

N 0045.50" W 326.14' 

ILO.W. 
13,543 SQ. Fr. , 0.31 AC 

 

W/ 1' YELLOW PLAST. CAP 
(ILLEGIBLE) 

N 8914'40.  E VACATED POR110N Cr 
36111 MOUE CT. AS PER 

ORD. NO. ST, 2000 

 

36TH AVENUE Cr, 
(60' ROW) 

N 00'45'50" W 677.80 

  

LONGSV1EW TOWNHOMES LLC 
ZONED R-H 

JFMT PROPERTIES LLC 
ZONED C-H 

GENERAL NOTE& 

I BASIS OF KONG& ASSUMING THE EAST LINE OF LOTS 6, 
7 AND 8, BLOCK 1, GATEWAY PARK FILING NO 3 FIRST REPLAT. AS 
MONUMENTED BY A NO 5 REBAR VAN A 1 INCH ALUMINUM CAP 
STAMPED PLO 27269 AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 6 
AND A NO. 5 REBAR MTH A 1 INCH ALUMINUM CAP STAMPED PLO 
7242 AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT B TO BEAR SOUTH 
004932' EAST. BEING A GRID BEARING OF THE COLORADO STATE 
PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NORTH ZONE, NORTH AMERICAN DATUM 
1963/2007, A DISTANCE OF 629 86 FEET WIN ALL BEARINGS 
CONTAINED HEREIN RELATIVE THERETO. 

2. FLOOD PLAIN NOTE: THE ENTIRETY OF THf SUBLECT PROPERTY 
FALLS WITHIN FLOOD ZONE X (UNSHADED) AREAS OF MINIMAL 
FLOODING. AS DELINEATED ON FEW FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP, 
COMMUNITY PANEL NUMBER 08123C1540E (NO MAP PRINTED) 

3 THIS ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING PLAT WAS PREPARED BY AARON 
AVM DEMO, PLO 382115, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BASELINE 
CORPORATION, 4007 5 LINCOLN AWNUE, LOVELAND. CO 80537 

6 

 

SUBJECT 

SITE 

 

281N ST 

HIGFIWAY 34 
\ 

  

\  _
G

ol
de

n 
S

ur
ve

y 
P

ro
jec

ts
 \c

o
—

 

GATEWAY SELF STORAGE PROPERTY BOUNDARY MAP 

W 25TH ST 

LOCATED IN THE SE 1/4, SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 65 WEST 
OF THE 6th PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN 

CITY OF GREELEY, WELD COUNTY, COLORADO 

16, 16TH AVENUE 

IFOUND NO 5 
REBAR  

ii 
20' WATER 
Enclerr DRAINAGE EASEMENT 

15' OUT( 

NVW LLC 
ZONED PUD 

D&R LAND COMPANY 
ZONED PUD 

BASS OF BEARINGS 
S 004632' E 629.86' 

BLOCK I 

o's'\ 

GATEWAY PARK FG 83 
1ST REPLAT BLOCK I. LOTS 6, 7 AND 8 

239,380 SQFF. , 5.50 AC (TOTAL) 
225,837 SQ. Fr. , 5.18 AC (PROPERTY ONLY) 

13,543 SQ. Fr. , 031 AC (R.O.W. ONLY) 
CURRENT ZONING. PUD 
PROPOSED ZONING: C-H 

FOUND NO 5 REBAR 91/ 
1' YELLOW PLAST CAP 

'LS 7242' 

VICINITY MAP 
SCOLD I'.1000 

ZONING DESCRIFIION: 

LOTS 6, 7 UNDO. BLOCK I, GATEWAY PARK MUNG 90 3. FIRST REPLAT, CITY OF 
GREELEY, COUNTY OF WELD, STATE OF COLORADO, TOGETHER MTH DIE EAST HALF 
OF VACATED 36TH AVENUE ADJACENT THERETO AS DESCRIBED IN ORDINANCE NO 
51, 2000, CASE NO V/D 700 RECORDED OCTOBER 20, 2000 AT RECEPTION NO. 
2801682, MID THAT PORTION DEDICATED AS A PART OF 36TH AVENUE AS SHORN 
ON 36TH AVENUE - STREET DEDICATION MAP RECORDED MARCH 5, 1996 AT 
RECEPTION NO 2479404, COUNTY OF NEW, STATE OF COLORADO, BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BASIS OF BEARINGS: ASSUMING THE EAST LINE OF LOTS 6, 7 AND 8, BLOCK 1 
GATEWAY PARK FIUNG NO 3 FIRST REPLAT. AS MONUMENTED BY A NO. 5 REBAR 
WON A 1 INCH PLASTIC CAP STOWED PLO 27269 AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF 
SAID LOT 6 AND A NO 5 REBAR NTH A 1 INCH PLASTIC CAP STAMPED PLO 7242 
AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 8 TO BEAR SOUTH 004632' EAST, 
BEING A GRID BEARING OF THE COLORADO STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, 
NORTH ZONE, NORTH AMERICAN DATUM 1903/2007, A DISTANCE OF 629 86 FEET 
WITH ALL BEARINGS CONTAINED HEREIN RELATIVE THERETO. 

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 6, THENCE ALONG THE EAST 
LINE OF SAID LOTS 6, 7 AM) 8 SOUTH 004632' EAST A DISTANCE OF 629 86 
FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1 THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH LINE 
OF SAID LOT 8 SOUTH 814710. WEST A DISTANCE OF 369.30 FEET TO THE 
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SATO VACATED 36TH AVENUE; THENCE ALONG THE WEST 
LINE OF SAID VACATED 36TH AVENUE EXTENDED NORTH 0015'50' WEST A 
DISTANCE OF 67710 FEET TO THE EXTENDED NORTHERLY UNE OF SAID LOT 6; 
THENCE ALONG THE EXTENDED AND NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 6, NORTH 
13914'40'EAST A DISTANCE OF 366.05 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

CONTAINING 239,300 se FT OR 150 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

t SI 

I L.

 

1 
C3 

FM MO CPI Mal Or 
PARK CONFOMICIN 

mu. warn. 8/28/2616 
06•60 fl 24' I 36' 

IIMMIT rIO OMR WC 
116SEUNE 01/30/2410 

Ple 01377 
IMMO rag 
777- Estoauswmt OF FotiNcal 
ItT 

8 

PIMMI. Me VC 01ILCT 
SPLINI•011 

C) 

111 

SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT  
AARON A. DEMO, A COLORADO REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR DO HEREBY STATE 

THAT THIS REZONING MAP WAS PREPARED UNDER MY PERSONAL SUPERVISION AND CHECKING, 
AND THAT THE FOREGOING MAP IS AN ACCURATE REPRESENTATION THEREOF, ALL THIS TO THE 
BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE. INFORMATION, BELIEF AND IN TAY PROFESSIONAL KNOWLEDGE. 

AARON A. DEMO - ON BEHALF OF BASELINE ENGINEERING CORP 
COLORADO REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL 
LAND SURVEYOR /38285 

 
79

scheffev
Typewritten Text
Attachment D

scheffev
Typewritten Text



This page intentionally left blank. 

 
80



1 
%
I ./

,'' 

5.00 jJTIL 

1111.11/00.•••• 

- r / 
/ 

SMT 

_ 

013.10 .10.1••• I 

I I 

DIFT101114.00.111111 

I I
t

 I 
ss

 

\ 
I 

LEGEND  

outcatima SEECODLIALDEES 
MAJOR CONTOUR (5.  INTERVAL) 

MINCR CONTOUR (I INER\Ik) 

WATER UNE 

—  ST Sr STCRM SEVER 

—  GAS GAS GAS  GAS.INE 

— SAN 535 — SAN  SANITARY SEMEN MAIN 

EDGE CF ASPHALT 

CRANIUM( FENCE 

VARE FENCE 

EASEMENT 

PROPERTY wow 

NAV.. • 

P3.00 ex DOW, OS 4•61.1ME 
COM•COATINI 

1/20/2018 
DOWSING .1,4 248 36 
SVIVF/1411.1 
BASELHE 07 /30(201; 
)011.0 03377 

377- ST NNLYSS U9P d.q 
s.cer 1 t• 

1 

SITE ANALYSIS MAP 
GATEWAY SELF STORAGE 

-.- .4=7" '1 ."," • 
,' ...--' f....' --e-... - ". '-7" , ti,(_- .,r.• ../. r" •*,t...-... ---4 ,--..L. _Z•a4.3-•••••:. - , • .4-- •-r-; • - • • . .:-.----,•7.:---n. • • •.- . • ....,-..,...•-•,.., -.-.1,- --. • , 

- -- •"- ---- -- • •,'..-.-. 1./ . ....1-....-'-."-  V.., - -...-. --.••••- -. - 3- - ......' • - 3.1.77 :0- , •••••• -.....-'- fr".'" -"t-  --'''. . ..` - - - -.-f, ..- ': - .- ....,..L......L _....,.... 4. ,.,- r- .-, - 7 ^.'.E •.% j..._,.-- --: ,....-  1- 4 -  - 7. - T "...;.. r---:. . • • .. ... , • • • , • ..? 

.: 

t e:„.37.'.:: .  ' • 
-:::-.,,r,--_-...= ===---... •;-. C . . • • • '.. . - :• , ... t.r. - .4 - - Z . *...k.. •'_ ..44-: -fr..1-- - -.- --*-- '- -..-.... '-' '  L.„.,.:: ..,:t .. , :...1_7.....::,_ ....... ..-i..7-A-_-:::-.c,„;:s...,..,-,;,.!•-4••-.4--7...- - .. ••••• .;••• --- •• •  , "..../.....i.^. -.0.-*,.,  • 4.'-...- -

 

._... ... , att.• ....I" 
, •  

.... j  - -.—  -...... \ I 1 I 611,11161•40.011 N b....... 

1 1 1 t 
, I 

i 
LI/  1 

/ ll \ / II 

7 , . ! - 
-

 i -----,-4 —  
,  • - -.- --  

- , / / I / 
/ 

_ 

1121001.11.40.• 

1 

5.2 ACRES _20.00 Vy.f.R LINE.ESMT 

i
t
 

0  

IMMO Sulties• I 

/ / - i_ / / / /  

& R LAND CO 
NVW L-LC 

20.00 UTIL & DR ESMT - S 00.4612-  E - 628 W . 

li••••••••••• OISIW•MagiNli 

EXIS1ING !MET (TIT) 

/ 

ratno outmost 

utImpamienap 

E-

 

1/ 

eartroanuerati 

DOIPIO•u•SOSI. 

/' 

_ - - ---. _ i ....,7 
.... '7 

r / 
% / / / \ / / 

/ r 
/ / / 
I / / 

/ / 

\/ ..... ..... 
J 

-, \II I / 
/ 

U1 I / .1. 
I // \ 

1 ../ .0"  

‘ 7 - o" 
4/.... 

..... 

( , ' .-- - - - ' 1 
\ 

I 
t
1 

\ 
U 

I I r - - 1 ` 1. 
1 / / 1 7 11 V\ 

1 i I 1 
I I 1 

I I  1 r 1 \ 
I -- -- ' I \ 

I \ 

115.00 UTIL ESMT 

a 12. 

1 

/ • 
L.; / 

z . . 

• 

• 
Ze .Z ; • -fr .'. 

L•0101µ{1.111c MITO.V.11.0•011.14 

... 

• : 1; • 5•• • 
I G ACCESS.  ' •••• ••-:••••?-1-`T-r-7 • • ) • • ' • `,T. .• .  .• . •  • , , . /J . 

,-- --- . ••• • '; • • ' -;-A- 7:'-!7*-

 

, • • • • • • ••---••••-: 
1 

• -N 00.454 W 326.14 . • . • • • ..  • , 
......  

LEW 43' 
'I ./.  • • .."'• 

- 

19
7
0
 C

O
R

P
 

k R•85 W t,;01. • ••• • 7 • • ;%. 
(141011730' 

1 
.•••" 

• -• - - - 

N 0,74.55Cr W • 275_52' 

EISTING -  

A CESS; 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

LOTS 6.7 AND 8, BLOCK 1, GATEWAY PARK FIUNG NO.3, 
FIRST REPLAT, CITY OF GREELEY, COUNTY OF WELD, 
STATE OF COLORADO, TOGETHER WITH THE EAST HALF 
OF VACATED 36TH AVENUE ADJACENT THERETO AS 
DESCRIBED IN ORDINANCE NO. 51, 2000. CASE NO. V/D 
700 RECORDED OCTOBER 20,2000 AT RECEPTION NO. 
2801682, EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PORTION 
DEDICATED AS A PART OF 36TH AVENUE AS SHOWN ON 
36TH AVENUE - STREET DEDICATION MAP RECORDED 
MARCH 5, 1996 AT RECEPTION NO. 2479404, COUNTY 
OF WELD. STATE OF COLORADO 

36TH AVE CT 

„ 

MING PROPOSED 
MEDI SIVELS. 

6 FIRE HYDRANT 

94 WATER VALVE 

WATER METER 

0E0000US IRE 

=mous ma 

COPOPEROUS SHRUB 

0 DECIDUOUS SHRUB 

NATURAL DRAINAGE PATTERNS 

DOSING LANDSCAPE AREA 

Z 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
30 0 30 60 

I  
ON FEET) 

1 NCH = 30 Fr 

 
81

scheffev
Typewritten Text
Attachment E

scheffev
Typewritten Text

scheffev
Typewritten Text



This page intentionally left blank. 

 
82



19' 

FOUND NO 5 
RED AR 

EXISTING STORAGE 0141 
176.21' EXISTING STORAGE UNIT 

GATEWAY PARK FG 43 1ST REPLAT BLOCK 1, LOTS 6, 7 AND 8 

225,837 SQ. FT 5.18 AC CURRENT ZONING: PUD PROPOSED ZONING: C-H 

 

29 

   

 

EXISTING STORAGE UNIT 

  

EXISTING STORAGE UNIT 
116'.30" 

  

    

  

21 • WATERLINE  
'EASEMENT -  - 

EXISTING STORAGE UNIT 
176'.31. 

W 0046E0'1/ 326.14' - 

Law. 
13,543 SQ. Fr. , 031 AC 

36M MINIM CT. 
Off ROW) 

30' WATER MID SEDER 
EASEMENT 

N 0015.50' W 677.60' 

EXISTING 
ACCESS 

FOUND NO. 4 ROAR 
W/ 1.  YELLOW PLAST. CAP 

(ILLEGIBLE) 

2 

EXISTING STORAGE UNIT 
166i30' 

29 

EXISTING STORAGE UNIT 
166,11' 

 

 

EXISTING STORAGE UNIT 

• 

• • IA 

EXISTING STORAGE UNIT 
156131' 

\NXXL 

\""r-  • , • • 

"2. 

ts' 

LOT COVERAGE NOTES 
CURRENT SITE INCLUDING 36TH AVE VACATION 
TOTAL SITE AREA 

TOTAL PAVED: 
TOTAL BUILDINGS: 

STORAGE: 
OFFICE 

TOTAL OPEN SPACE: 

225,837 SF 100% 
89,503 SF 396% 
81,023 SF 35.9% 
79,438 SF 
1,585 SF 
55,311 SF 245% 

19
7 0

 C
O

R
P

 

CI
T

Y
 O F

 GR
EE

LE
Y 

••••••.1,....411MPECT 
41.041.4.C. 

RIR•SNO 44.141, OF WI.* 
C00/01•01. 

041•1.4%••41T. 6/26/2111 
- 4  51 24'  X 36' 

RAMP PRI 
UMW 07/30/7076 
Je••a 01377 
CONVINKIAthE 
377- ZOOK sultpaurt YIP •0•61.1.4•1 

34' 

\\ 

NVW LLC 
ZONED PUD 9' 

• I • 

• 
• . 

15' UTILITY 
EASEMENT . . 

• • . 
. • . • 

FOUND NO 4 RERUN W-
I' YELLOW PLAST CAP 

'PIS 7242' 
• . % 

• • • 

• • • 

• l• 

L.1113.43% 
* 

/s90'0210*-
01-N 11'01111.  E 

• • • • 

• r • 

GATEWAY SELF STORAGE ZONING SUITABILITY MAP 
LOCATED IN THE SE 1/4, SECTION 14, TOWNSHIPS NORTH, RANGE 65 WEST 

OF THE 6th PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN 
CITY OF GREELEY, WELD COUNTY, COLORADO 

FOUND NO 5 REBAR W/ 
YELLOW PLAST CAP 

'LS 7242' 

• • • . • --1.1 
EXISTING STORAGE UNIT 

te: 
BLOCK 1 

4—

 

--

 

40' 

EXISTING STORAGE UNIT 

- 4-

 

30' 

EYJSPNG STORAGE UNIT 

EXISTING STORAGE UNIT 
110.31' 

- 

2cr 

• l• • 

• • I • • 
• i • 

• I' • 
—0— -• 

• • TLIT 
FOUND NO. 4 REBA 

• 
N 8914.40 E • •5 VACATED PORTION OF 

3000e . • • k 
36111 AVENUE CT AS PER 

• .. • . 
• • • k 

• 
ORD Na 51. 2000 

FOUND NO. 4 RERUN 

• • • 

WIAT PROPERTIES LLC 
ZONED C-H 

PARCEL DESCRIPTION: 

LOTS 6, 7 AND a, BLOCK 1, GATEWAY PARK FIUNG NO.3, FIRST REPLAT, CITY OF 
GREELEY, COUNTY OF VELD, STATE OF COLORADO, TOGETHER NTH INC EAST HALF 
OF VACATED 361N AVENUE ADJACENT THERETO AS DESCRIBED RI ORDINANCE NO 
51, 2000, CASE NO V/D 700 RECORDED OCTOBER 20, 2000 AT RECEPTION NO 
2801682, EXCITING THEREFROM THAT PORDON DEDICATED AS A PART OF 36TH 
AVENUE AS 040614 ON 36TH AVENUE - STREET DEDICATION MAP RECORDED 
MARCH 5, 1996 AT RECEPTION NO. 2419404, COUNTY OF WELD, STATE OF 
COLORADO. 
CONTAINING 225,837 SO. FT OR 5.18 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

GENERAL NOTLt 

THIS SURVEY WAS PREPARED WITH THE BENEFIT OF COMMONWEALTH LAND 
TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY COMPANY OF NORTHERN COLORADO TITLE 
COMMITMENT FILE NO, 459-1403187131 DATED SEPT. 16, 2011 4N6 DOES NOT 
CENSTITUTE A TITLE SEARCH BY BASELINE ENGINEERING CORP. TO DETERMINE 
TO DETERMINE TITLE. THIS SURVEY DOES NOT PURPORT TO REFLECT ANY OF 
THE FOLLOWING 1111101 MAY BE APPLICABLE TO THE SUBACT REAL ESTATE; 
BUILDING SETBACK ONES; RESTRICIM COVENANTS; SUBDIVISION RESTRICTIONS; 
ZONING OR OTHER LAND USE REGULATIONS, 

2. DISTANCES ON THIS PLAT ARE EXPRESSED IN as SURVEY FEET AND 
DECIMALS THEREOF. A OS. SURVEY FOOT IS DEFINED AS EXACTLY 1200/3937 
METERS. 

3. NONTE. ACCORDING 10 COLORADO LAW YOU MUST COMMENCE ANY LEGAL 
ACDON BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY WITHIN THREE YEARS 
AFTER YOU FIRST DISCOVER SUCH DEFECT. IN NO EVENT MAY ANY ACTION 
BASED UPON ANY DEFECT PI THIS SURVEY BE COMMENCED MORE THAN 1EN 
YEARS FROM THE DATE OF THE CERTIFICATION SHOT% HEREON. 

4 PER C 8.5, 18-04-508, MY PERSON IMO KNOINIGLY REMOVES, ALTERS OR 
DEFACES ANY PUBLIC LAND SURVEY MONUMENT OR LAND MONUMENT OR 
ACCESSORY, COMMITS A CLASS TWO (2) MISDEMEANOR 

5. OATE OF FIELD WORK: MAY 23, 20I8 

SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT: 
I, AARON A DEMO. A COLORADO REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR DO HEREBY STATE 
THAT THIS REZONING MAP WAS PREPARED UNDER MY PERSONAL SUPERVISION AND CHECKING. 
AND THAT THE FOREGONE MAP IS AN ACCURATE REPRESENTATION THEREOF, ALL THIS TO THE 
BEST OF MY KNOREDGE INFORMATION, BELIEF AND IN MY PROFESSIONAL KNOMIDGE 

AARON A. DEMO - ON BEHALF OF BASELINE ENGINEERING CORP 
COLORADO REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL 
LAND SURVEYOR /38205 

. . }. . . . . . . . 
• • • . • • •  • • • . • • 

: * : 

FOUNO Na 5 REBAR W/ NVW LLC 
1' RED MAST CAP 
'PIS 27269' ZONED PUD 

EXISTING STORAGE UNIT 
196.20' 

. . • - . • - . . . . . . . . . . . . 

D&R LAND COMPANY 
ZONED PUD 

BASIS OF BEARINGS 
S 00'4632' E p9.136'  

. . . • • • • • • . • ............. • . • . ..... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . J . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . • . . 

. . . . • .4 . 

EXISTING STORAGE UNIT 
171.1213. 

4-

 

21 

EXISTING STORAGE UNIT 
176 .11' 

FOUND NO. 4 RERUN W/ 
I' YELLOW PLAST. CAP 
'PLS 7242* 

• •  •  • .1-•  V'•  47-5.41. •  *  
• • • • W  • • •‘• • • 4•  • • -• 'FOUNDIM 4 RERAN W/ • •  &X, • "-L • • . • . . • • • • . . • • . • . . • • • . . . . . YELLOWPLAS

38
T.

3
C
5
AP
r

N

)

, 
. . • . • . • 

•
• • • • . • • • . PLS •  

• 
• • • • • • • • 

T r.  

cL5 

MI 

NVW LLC 
ZONED PUD 

15' UTILITY & 
DRUNAGE EASEMENT 

K
E

L
D

 CO
UN

TY
 

LEGEND  
alskrultenna etzaziutEreta 

OAS 

T=Fzz_ 

WATER UNE 

STORM SENT 

GASLINE 

PROPERTY BOUNDARY 

DITCH FLOCK 

CURB AND GUTTER (SPILL/CATCH) 

z —•••=z2-4*—wt 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
0 30 60 

1-1 1-1 
ON Fun) 

NCH 30 FT 

PROPOSED SITE INCLUDING 
TOTAL SITE AREA 

TOTAL PAVED: 
TOTAL BUILDINGS: 

STORAGE: 
OFFICE 

TOTAL OPEN SPACE-

  

36TH AVE VACATION: 
225,837 SF 100% 
95,735 SF 42 4% 
84,923 SF 37.6% 
83,338 SF 
1,585 SF 
45,179 SF 200% 

SOSTINE PROPOSED 
SEW= MILS 

4 FIRE HYDRANT 

/34 4.4 WATER VAL* 

e • WATER METER 

ID SANITARY MAMillE 30 

LANDSCAPE/OPEN STACE 

ORANAGE PATTERN 

war I go 1 

1  
83

scheffev
Typewritten Text
Attachment F



This page intentionally left blank. 

 
84



_ 

29th St 

VIM Him 

 

M fhb r ws• ig lItte t‘ 

f 

24th St 

If 
=1 

- 

-D@Ogi 

cD 

;5 28th St 

II' 

3 

 
86

scheffev
Typewritten Text
Attachment G



This page intentionally left blank. 

85



Planning Commission Summary Page 1 of 2         Energy Action Plan 
September 10, 2019 

PLANNING COMMISSION SUMMARY 

ITEM: Energy Action Plan, an Element of the Imagine Greeley 
Comprehensive Plan 

PLANNER: Caleb Jackson, AICP | Planner II 

HEARING DATE:  September 10, 2019 

PLANNING COMMISSION FUNCTION: 
To review the proposed Energy Action Plan. The official Planning Commission recommendation 
is scheduled for September 24, 2019.  
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

PROJECT OVERVIEW AND BACKGROUND: 

In 2018, the City of Greeley adopted a new comprehensive plan, Imagine Greeley. The plan 
identifies the need to create and adopt supplemental plans as additional elements of Imagine 
Greeley to provide more detailed planning and direction around specific issues. In 2019, the 
Planning Division was tasked with facilitating the creation and adoption of the Energy Action 
Plan as a City Council work program item.  

City staff worked with Brendle Group through Xcel’s Partners in Energy to collect a group of 
community stakeholders as an Energy Action Team to draft goals and strategies for residences, 
businesses, institutions, and the City of Greeley. The Energy Action Team met for a series of 
workshops, and the direction provided the framework for the Energy Action Plan.  

The Energy Action Team identified three main priorities for the community: 
• Create an affordable and reliable energy future.
• Increase residential, commercial, and industrial energy efficiency and alternative energy
opportunities.
• Improve economic health and stimulate growth.

The Energy Action Plan proceeds to identify four focus areas: residential, business, educational 
institution, and municipal. Each focus area has identified goals and specific strategies to help 
reach the associated goals. By adopting the Energy Action Plan and an associated Memorandum 
of Understanding, Xcel will continue to provide support for implementation of the strategies 
through Partners in Energy. The Energy Action Plan not only helps the community reach its 
efficiency and cost savings goals, but such a partnership establishes the needed lines of 
communication to collaborate regarding additional opportunities and provide Greeley with a 
reliable energy future.  

A public open house will be hosted on September 9, 2019. Any significant feedback will be 
shared during the Planning Commission worksession and subsequent hearing.  

 
87



Planning Commission Summary Page 2 of 2         Energy Action Plan 
September 10, 2019 

The Planning Commission is the primary steward of the City’s comprehensive plan. Any 
amendments or additions to the plan, such as adoption of a sub-element, require a public hearing 
on the proposed amendment and formal recommendation to the City Council. The 
recommendation is scheduled for the Planning Commission hearing on September 24, 2019.     

ATTACHMENTS: 

Attachment A Energy Action Plan, an Element of the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan 

 
88



 

Cover 

 

 

 

 

 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

i 
 

Acknowledgements 
Thanks to the following organizations and individuals for participating in developing this Energy Action Plan. 

Greeley’s Energy Action Planning Team  
The planning team was formed from a varied group of City of Greeley staff, local and regional 
organizations, local businesses, and committed community members. 
 
City Staff Members  

• John Barnett, Community Development 
(retired) 

• Caleb Jackson, Community 
Development (team lead) 

• Carol Larsen, Greeley Urban Renewal 
Authority 

• Brad Mueller, Community Development 

• Rachel Prelog, Community Development 

• James Redmond, Communication and 
Engagement 

• J.R. Salas, Greeley Urban Renewal 
Authority 

• Ben Snow, Economic Health & Housing 

• Tom Welch, Island Grove 
Community Team Members 

• Dean Andersen, Andersen Salvage 

• Bianca Fisher, Greeley Downtown 
Development Authority 

• Adam Frazier, Richmark 

• Michael Harris, Energy Outreach Colorado 

• Kent Henson, Greeley-Evans School 
District 6 

• Jean Hinkle, Poudre Valley Rural Electric 
Association 

• Kirk Leichliter, University of Northern 
Colorado 

• Dave Nalley, University of Northern 
Colorado 

• Sarah Macquiddy, Greeley Chamber of 
Commerce 

• Christine McDermott, Atmos Energy 

• Michael Millsaps, Aims Community 
College 

• Jack Southards, Aims Community College 

• Sarah Willcutts, Andersen Salvage 

• Timothy Ullmann, Aims Community 
College 

Xcel Energy Staff 

• Michelle Beaudoin 

• Dan Clark, Account Manager 

• Channing Evans, Communications 
Consultant 

• Lucas McConnell, Local Government 
Affairs Manager 

Partners in Energy Facilitators 

• John Butler, Brendle Group (former) 

• Terry Hatfield, Brendle Group 

• Shelby Sommer, Brendle Group 

• Becca Stock, Brendle Group 
City Council  

• John Gates 

• Jon Smail 

• Brett Payton 

• Michael Fitzsimmons 

• Dale Hall 

• Stacy Suniga 

• Robb Casseday 
Planning Commission 

• Justin Yeater 

• Erik Briscoe 

• Jon Rarick 

• Louisa Andersen 

• Christian Schulte 

• Larry Modlin 
 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

ii 
 

 

Table of Contents 
Acknowledgements......................................................................................................................................... i 

Executive Summary ...................................................................................................................................... iv 

Our Vision ................................................................................................................................................ iv 

Our Goals ................................................................................................................................................. iv 

How Will We Get There? .......................................................................................................................... iv 

Introduction .................................................................................................................................................... 1 

Xcel Energy Partners in Energy ................................................................................................................ 1 

Relationship to Comprehensive Plan ........................................................................................................ 2 

Xcel Energy and City of Greeley Coordination .......................................................................................... 3 

Who Are We? – Community Background ...................................................................................................... 5 

Geography, Population, and Demographics .............................................................................................. 5 

Housing ..................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Business and Economy ............................................................................................................................. 7 

Where Are We Now? ..................................................................................................................................... 8 

The Case for an Energy Action Plan ......................................................................................................... 8 

Baseline Energy Analysis .......................................................................................................................... 8 

Existing Energy Practices ........................................................................................................................ 13 

Local Outreach and Communication Channels ....................................................................................... 14 

Where Do We Want to Go? ......................................................................................................................... 15 

Our Energy Vision ................................................................................................................................... 15 

Focus Areas and Goals ........................................................................................................................... 15 

How Are We Going to Get There? ............................................................................................................... 19 

Residential Strategies ............................................................................................................................. 19 

Business Strategies ................................................................................................................................ 24 

Educational Institution Strategies ............................................................................................................ 30 

Municipal Strategies ................................................................................................................................ 33 

How Are We Going to Stay on Course? ...................................................................................................... 37 

Operational Actions and Tracking ........................................................................................................... 37 

Communication and Reporting ................................................................................................................ 37 

Changing Course: Corrective Action ....................................................................................................... 37 

Sharing Progress .................................................................................................................................... 38 

Beyond the Plan Horizon ......................................................................................................................... 38 

Appendix 1: Glossary of Terms ................................................................................................................... 39 

Appendix 2: Implementation Memorandum of Understanding ..................................................................... 41 

  



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

iii 
 

 

 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

iv 
 

Executive Summary 
This Energy Action Plan outlines tangible steps for the City of Greeley to move the community toward its 

development and energy efficiency goals. Xcel Energy’s Partners in Energy facilitated a series of 

workshops with the Energy Action Team in the spring and summer of 2019, to develop this plan.  

Our Vision 

 

Our Goals 
The City of Greeley aspires to achieve the following energy goals: 

• Encourage 2,700 or more City of Greeley households implement at least one energy efficiency or 

renewable energy measure annually. 

• Encourage 270 or more businesses to participate in an energy efficiency or renewable energy 

program through Xcel Energy each year. 

• Develop outreach channels to students to increase awareness of and engagement in energy 

efficiency and renewable energy opportunities. 

• Complete energy audits in targeted municipal facilities and implement at least one energy 

efficiency measure in each targeted facility, as recommended by the energy audits. 

How Will We Get There?  
To move toward its goals, the City of Greeley’s Energy Action Team identified strategic initiatives and 

targets for four important focus areas. These focus areas and strategic initiatives are the working elements 

of the Energy Action Plan and will generate concrete actions and impacts.  

  

Greeley promotes a healthy and diverse economy and a high quality of life that is responsive to 

all its residents, businesses, and neighborhoods. Through Xcel Energy Partners in Energy, the 

community will create an affordable and reliable energy future based on increased residential, 

commercial, and industrial energy efficiency and alternative energy opportunities to improve 

economic health and stimulate growth. 

Focus Areas for City of Greeley’s Energy Action Plan  

• Conduct outreach at community events and activities. 

• Develop and conduct residential outreach campaigns to under-resourced families, 

renters, and homeowners. 

Residential 

Business 
• Host an annual Greeley business energy efficiency expo. 

• Conduct sector-based small business outreach to restaurants, offices, retail, and 

eco-friendly companies. 

 

Educational 

Institutions 

Municipal 

• Engage students in energy efficiency opportunities. 

• Complete energy audits and efficiency improvements at targeted facilities. 

• Complete energy audits and efficiency improvements at targeted facilities. 

• Align processes to integrate energy efficiency and renewable energy information 

into new construction and development review processes. 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

v 
 

The playbook outlining key actions and timing, as well as what follows the Partners in Energy 

implementation support period is summarized below. 

Playbook for Achieving Energy Action Plan Goals 

 

Ongoing   

 

• Have regular check-ins to 

stay on course and adjust 

as needed 

• Track implementation of 

strategies over time 

• Continue to identify new 

outreach channels and 

target programs 

• Recognize successes and 

high performing community 

members 

• Regularly share outcomes 

with the Planning 

Commission, City Council 

and the public 

• Refine strategy 

approaches to 

accommodate lessons 

learned 

 

Immediate Actions 
(Q4 2019-Q1-2020) 

• Share Energy Action Plan with 
community  

• Launch strategy teams  

• Refine calendar of activities and 
responsibilities for each strategy 

• Develop draft outreach materials 

• Identify residential outreach events 
and confirm staffing 

• Identify partners for targeted 
residential campaigns 

• Identify venue and begin planning 
for business expo 

• Plan and begin business outreach 
activities 

• Identify student groups that can 
support engagement strategies 

• Complete applications and 
scheduling of energy audits for 
educational and municipal facilities 

• Begin leveraging monthly utility 
coordination meetings to improve 
development process alignment 

 

 

 

Mid Term Actions 
(Q2 2020-Q2 2021) 

• Conduct outreach at 
community events 

• Implement targeted 
residential campaigns 

• Conduct business 
outreach workshops 

• Complete energy audits 
for targeted education 
and municipal facilities 
and identify energy 
improvement projects 

• Incorporate energy 
efficiency into annual 
capital improvement 
budgets 

• Refresh/update 
outreach materials as 
appropriate 

 

 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

1 

Introduction 
This Energy Action Plan outlines tangible steps for the City of Greeley to move the community towards its 

energy efficiency and cost savings goals while fostering relationships and partnerships with its utility 

providers. The community’s main energy priorities are outlined below: 

• Create an affordable and reliable energy future. 

• Increase residential, commercial, and industrial energy efficiency and alternative energy 

opportunities. 

• Improve economic health and stimulate growth. 

This plan begins with documentation of the Xcel Energy Partners in Energy planning process, an overview 

of the City of Greeley’s demographics, and the community’s baseline energy use and profile. Next it 

introduces the energy vision, supporting energy focus areas, and community goals. The strategies provide 

more specific direction for the coordination, steps, and timelines necessary to achieve the goals. Finally, 

the plan concludes with information about ongoing plan monitoring and maintenance.  

Xcel Energy Partners in Energy  
Xcel Energy is the main electric utility serving the City of Greeley. In the summer of 2014, Xcel Energy 

launched Partners in Energy to support communities, such as Greeley, in developing and implementing 

energy action plans that supplement existing sustainability plans, strategies, and tools.  

Plan Development Process 
The content of this plan was derived from a series of four, 2-hour stakeholder workshops held in the spring 

of 2019. The stakeholder group, or Energy Action Team, included representatives from the City of Greeley, 

local businesses, area institutions, and community organizations. See Figure 1 for a summary of the 

process that the Partners in Energy facilitators guided the group through to develop the Energy Action Plan. 

 

Figure 1. Partners in Energy Process for Success 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

2 
 

The Partners in Energy facilitators led the drafting and development of the plan and refined the content in 

coordination with Energy Action Team participants. The City sought feedback on the plan at a public open 

house with specific outreach to major stakeholders. Additionally, work sessions with Planning Commission 

and City Council were held prior to adoption to facilitate an opportunity to garner feedback from community 

leaders. 

Successful implementation of the plan and achievement of the goals will require extensive public 

involvement and participation. While a draft of the Energy Action Plan was available for public comment, 

the team will focus on engaging community members in the implementation of the plan. 

Implementation Support 
Partners in Energy will work with the City of Greeley to support implementation of the Energy Action Plan, 

especially in the early stages. See Figure 2 for Partners in Energy resources available to support 

implementation. 

 

A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the City of Greeley and Xcel Energy will detail the 

specific commitments of each entity and the implementation support provided. The Implementation MOU 

will be valid for a period of up to 18 months following the Energy Action Plan adoption and will likely include 

time for Partners in Energy facilitators to provide staffing to support project management and strategy 

deployment, as well as funding for reimbursable expenses associated with strategy implementation. 

Relationship to Comprehensive Plan 
The Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan describes the need to create and adopt supplemental plans as 

additional elements of Imagine Greeley to provide more detailed planning and direction around specific 

issues. Multiple objectives in the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan relate to energy, and envisions the 

community increasing efficiency and conservation efforts. Because of its location, history, and prominence 

in energy development in Colorado, the time is ripe for Greeley to develop a plan for an energy future that 

facilitates the growth of its economy and meets the needs of a growing population. A plan for energy 

Project 
Management

Communication 
Assistance and 

Resources

Tracking and 
Measurement

Celebration and 
Recognition of 

Successes

Figure 2. Resources from Xcel Energy for Implementation 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

3 
 

efficiency and renewable energy growth fits the vision, core values and goals and objectives set forth in 

Imagine Greeley, the recently adopted update of the Comprehensive Plan. 

Imagine Greeley Vision 
Greeley values and respects the diversity of its people, cultures, neighborhoods, and resources in a 

manner that creates and sustains a safe, unique, united, vibrant, and rewarding place in which to live, work, 

learn, grow, and play. The community promotes a healthy and diverse economy, and a high quality of life 

that is responsive to all its residents, businesses and neighborhoods. 

Imagine Greeley Core Values 
Of the twelve core values identified in Imagine Greeley, the Energy Action Plan directly supports four: 

proactive, progressive, and balanced economic development; responsible stewardship of natural resources 

and the environment; high-quality infrastructure and services; public/private cooperation to achieve and 

maintain exceptional community benefits. 

Imagine Greeley Goals and Objectives 
More specifically this Energy Action Plan supports the following goals and objectives outlined in Imagine 

Greeley. 

NR-4: Use resources efficiently and sustainably.  

• Provide community leadership through example by maximizing energy and water efficiency in 

all City operations, facilities, programs, and equipment. 
• Encourage the efficient use and conservation of energy. 
• Promote the incorporation of renewable resources throughout the community. Expand 

opportunities to capture waste energy to supply local utility needs and drive the local economic 

development engine.  

EH-4  Support and collaborate with the city’s school districts. 

HO-1.5  Provide new and prospective home buyers with information to support a successful transition from 

renting to ownership.  

NR-3  Demonstrate stewardship of the environment 

NR-5  Engage all members of the community in the process of supporting the stewardship of our natural 

and built environments. 

PS-3.3  Explore the feasibility of adopting minimum standards for the condition of rental housing properties. 

Energy Action Plan Element 
This Energy Action Plan is intended to serve as an element of Imagine Greeley. It contains an energy 

vision statement that aligns and builds upon the Image Greeley vision and core values, supports the 

Imagine Greeley goals and objectives, and it prioritizes and details energy efficiency and renewable energy 

strategies to support implementation. 

Xcel Energy and City of Greeley Coordination 
Through the planning process, the Energy Action Team identified several opportunities for improved 

coordination and communication between Xcel Energy and the City of Greeley, summarized below. 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

4 
 

Utility Coordination 
The City of Greeley and Xcel Energy meet routinely to coordinate on utility infrastructure and operational 

issues. In the past, these meetings occurred monthly; however, through this planning process it was 

discovered that these utility coordination meetings were not happening monthly as intended. The City of 

Greeley has recently created a new Utility Coordinator position who will be responsible for organizing and 

facilitating these monthly utility coordination meetings. Xcel Energy will participate in these meetings to 

continue to improve alignment and communication on electric system operations and infrastructure. These 

meetings provide an opportunity to discuss topics such as decision-making criteria for the use of City 

undergrounding funds, site coordination, and regional service and capacity planning.  

Key Site Coordination 
In addition to illuminating process improvements for utility coordination meetings, the Partners in Energy 

process also highlighted the opportunity to have more direct communication and coordination on key 

economic development sites in the community. It was suggested that the City of Greeley and Xcel Energy 

operations staff work together on a quarterly (or similar basis) to review key opportunity sites and align 

expectations and/or pursue site certifications.   

Account Management 
Xcel Energy’s account manager and area service manager will remain the ongoing and primary points of 

contact for the City of Greeley for any operational and/or infrastructure planning or coordination needs. 

They are committed to supporting ongoing efforts to enhance and build relationships between the City of 

Greeley and Xcel Energy (e.g., operations, account managers, etc.), and improving alignment and 

communication with specific customers and/or targeted geographic locations within the community that may 

have unique energy needs.  

  



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

5 
 

Who Are We? – Community Background 
Greeley was founded in 1869, when the original settlers envisioned a utopian community on the high plains 

of northern Colorado. The community was founded on the principles of temperance, religion, education, 

agriculture, irrigation, cooperation, and family values. In the 150 years since incorporating, the community 

has grown into the 12th largest city in Colorado with a population of 108,000 people and is projected to 

continue growing in area and population.  

Geography, Population, and Demographics 
Greeley was located near the confluence of the Cache la Poudre and South Platte Rivers to take 

advantage of water for irrigated agriculture. Located approximately 50 miles north of Denver, Greeley is 

close to other large cities in northern Colorado, such as Fort Collins and Loveland. US Highway 34 links the 

city with I-25, and US Highway 85 provides access to destinations north and south of the community.  

 

 

Figure 3 shows the planning area for this Partners in Energy Plan. It includes the City of Greeley and 

Greeley’s adopted Long Range Expected Growth Area.  

Greeley’s population is expected to continue to grow at a rate of approximately 1.8 percent per year 

through 2040, which could coincide with an increase in energy consumption over the same time. In 2040, 

the population in the Long Range Expected Growth Area is projected to be 156,000 people. According to 

the US Census Bureau, Greeley’s 2018 population identifies as 62 percent white, 17 percent Hispanic or 

Latino, 12 percent black/African American, and 5 percent Asian, while 2 percent identify as two or more 

races. Since Greeley has a diverse community, communication around energy consumption and strategy 

will need to be facilitated through several different channels. In addition, accommodation should be made 

Figure 3. Greeley Planning Area 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

6 
 

for about 1 in 4 residents who speak a language other than English, the majority of which are Spanish-

speaking. 

Compared to the rest of Northern Colorado, the City of Greeley has a relatively young age profile, with a 

median age of 30.7. Of the total population, 74 percent is over 18 years of age while only 12 percent is over 

65. 

The median household income in Greeley for 2018 was $50,483, lower than state average of $62,520. 

According to the 2012-2017 American Community Survey 5-year Estimates (ACS), 15 percent of the 

population live below the poverty level. However, Greeley is about 15 percent more affordable than the 

State of Colorado overall, likely owing to relatively lower housing costs.   

Housing 
As of 2019, Greeley had an estimated total of 39,897 housing units (City of Greeley data). Single family 

homes account for 64 percent of all units, and most of the housing (65 percent) was built between 1970 

and 2009. The decades 1970-1979 and 2000-2009 saw the largest growth in the housing stock (see Figure 

4), showing that Greeley has a mix of older housing that are likely due for efficiency and appliance 

upgrades as well as newer units that are likely more efficient, but still may have opportunities for upgrades. 

Greeley also has a mix of owner occupied (58 percent) and renter occupied units (42 percent). 

Figure 4. Age of Housing Stock 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

7 
 

During the recession, the rate of new residential construction was below the long-term average rate of 

construction, leading to a shortfall of total residential units. Over the last decade, the housing stock 

percentage of multi-family housing has increased while the percentage of single-family housing has 

decreased, helping to make up for this shortfall (Figure 5). As the population grows and home sale prices 

rise, the City of Greeley expects new multi-family construction will continue to increase as percentage of 

the total housing stock.   

Figure 5. Percent Change in Housing Mix 

 

Business and Economy 
Greeley has developed into a cultural and academic hub, hosting educational institutions such as the 

University of Northern Colorado and Aims Community College. According to the US Census Bureau, in 

2018, 44,555 people were employed in Greeley. The top five industries are: education and healthcare (21 

percent); retail trade (12 percent); arts, entertainment and recreation (11 percent); manufacturing (10 

percent); and professional services (9 percent). Overall the City of Greeley has over 7,400 registered 

businesses. These large industry groups are good channels for energy efficiency information due to the 

number of employees and facilities in the community. 

The unemployment rate is low, at 3.0 percent (Bureau of Labor and Statistics). Focusing on energy 

efficiency and renewable energy training and improvements can continue to enhance economic vitality, 

since supporting workforce development and create meaningful employment opportunities that benefit the 

community.  

Greeley also boasts a relatively affordable cost of living and high quality of life, a combination not found in 

many other communities along the Front Range. 

  



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

8 
 

Where Are We Now?  
The Case for an Energy Action Plan 
Through plans, programs, and policies, the City of Greeley encourages the responsible stewardship of 

natural resources and the environment. Greeley’s water conservation efforts have been particularly 

successful in ensuring that the community has ample water resources for generations to come. Similarly, 

the City also encourages the efficient use and conservation of energy and promotes the incorporation of 

renewable resources throughout the community.  

An Energy Action Plan can help support these existing plans, such as Imagine Greeley, and move the 

City’s energy efficiency goals forward as the community grows. By assisting supporting families and 

businesses with energy efficiency measures, programs, and education, the entire community can benefit 

from energy and cost savings, improved air quality, and increased community resiliency.  

Baseline Energy Analysis 
An introductory step in the Partners in Energy planning process (see Figure 1) is to develop a community 

energy profile. The Partners in Energy team analyzed historical electricity data in Greeley by sector 

(residential, commercial and industrial, municipal). Three years of data (2016-2018) were used for the 

analysis, and 2018 serves as the baseline year for this plan. Only Xcel Energy electricity data are 

presented in the following baseline analysis. 

Poudre Valley Rural Electric Association (PVREA) provides electrical service to the western most portion of 

Greeley. As of 2017, PVREA customers made up about 6% of the total residential electricity use and 4% of 

the total commercial electricity use in the City. While this is a small portion of the total electricity use, the 

number of residential electricity customers in PVREA grew by almost 60% between 2015 and 2017. Since 

this area of Greeley is rapidly growing, it represents a good opportunity to build in energy efficiency from 

the beginning. PVREA data was unavailable for 2018. 

Atmos Energy is the natural gas provider for the City of Greeley for both residential and commercial 

premises. Atmos Energy did not provide data to inform the baseline analysis, but are supporting strategy 

implementation. 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

9 
 

Community Energy Use and Trending 
In 2018, Greeley had 41,432 residential, commercial and industrial, and municipal premises (Figure 6). A 

premise is a unique identifier for the location of electricity or natural gas service. In most cases, it is a meter 

location. This total includes premises served by electricity, natural gas, or both. Residential premises make 

up 87 percent of the overall community, but they account for 36 percent of the total electricity consumption 

in the community in 2018 (Figure 7).  

 

 

While the number of commercial and industrial and municipal premises is small compared to the residential 

sector, together these sectors account for 64 percent of the total electricity consumption in the community 

(Figure 7) and 58 percent of the overall electricity costs (Figure 8). 

Figure 6. 2018 Premise Count 

Figure 7. 2018 Electricity Consumption by Sector 

 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

10 
 

 

Figure 9 shows the cost per premise in 2018 for electricity. Although municipal facilities make up a small 

portion of the total energy costs, they have the highest annual cost per premise, presenting opportunities 

for savings in this sector.  

 

In total, approximately 790 million kilowatt hours (kWh) of electricity were consumed by residents and 

businesses in the City of Greeley in 2018. The commercial and industrial sector consumed most of the 

electricity in the community, accounting for nearly 478 million kWh (61 percent), while the residential sector 

consumed 287 million kWh (36 percent), and the municipal sector (encompassing all City of Greeley 

Figure 8. 2018 Electricity Costs by Sector 

Figure 9. 2018 Electricity Costs per Premise 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

11 
 

municipal premises) consumed 25 million kWh (3 percent) (Figure 10). Electricity use in Greeley in each of 

the three sectors has increased slightly over the last three years from 2016 to 2018 (Figure 10).  

The municipal sector saw an increase in electricity consumption of about 12 percent across the 274 

premises that are included in this analysis from 2016-2018 (Figure 10). During the same time frame, a 3 

percent increase in residential sector electricity consumption was compounded by a 1 percent increase in 

the commercial and industrial sector (Figure 10). Overall, electricity consumption increased 2 percent 

across the community between 2016 and 2018 while the while the number of premises in Greeley went up 

by 1.3 percent. This means that the average energy use per premise has increased.  

Efficiency Program Participation 
Part of the community energy profile includes Xcel Energy’s historic demand-side-management (DSM) and 

renewable energy program participation and associated energy savings for the residents and businesses of 

Greeley. These data provide a snapshot of what types of programs customers are using and to what 

extent. The data also show opportunities for greater participation in the available programs and the need for 

increased education and awareness. 

In 2018, about 5 percent of eligible residents participated in Xcel Energy DSM and renewable energy 

programs, saving over 429 thousand kWh. This equates to an average annual electricity cost savings of 

$21 per participant, in addition to rebates and other financial incentives associated with program 

participation. Figure 11 shows the average residential program participation rate from 2016 through 2018. 

Figure 10. Three Year Trend in Electricity Consumption by Sector 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

12 
 

 

In 2018, about 4 percent of businesses (including City facilities) participated in Xcel Energy programs, 

saving over 9 million kWh. This equates to an average annual energy cost savings of over $4,000 per 

participant, in addition to rebates and other financial incentives associated with program participation. 

Figure 12 shows the average business program participation rate from 2016 through 2018. 

Figure 11. Three Year Average Residential Program Participation 

Figure 12. Three Year Average Commercial Program Participation 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

13 
 

Existing Energy Practices  
Table 1. Community Energy Initiatives 

City of Greeley 

• Solar arrays have been installed at four City facilities including Bellevue Water Treatment 
Plant, Boyd Lake Water Treatment Plant, the Greeley Water Pollution Control Facility, and 
the Family FunPlex. 

• LED Lighting has been installed in City buildings and outdoor streetlights. 

• New construction incorporates energy conservation practices. The City currently uses the 
2009 International Energy Conservation Code and aims to adopt the 2018 update. 
 

 

University of Northern Colorado 

• 10kW solar PV system is installed on McKee Hall. 

• Parsons Hall (Facilities Building) is getting a new 170Kw solar array that will be installed 
summer 2019. 

• During the summer of 2019 lighting in residents’ halls common areas and exterior fixtures 
are being converted to LEDs. 

• T-8 florescent fixtures have been converted to LED fixtures in 17 buildings. 

• Controls upgrades and scheduling upgrades have been implemented for HVAC equipment. 

• HID lighting in Butler Hancock gym has been upgrading to LED with new lighting controls 
and motion detectors.  

• Parking lot lights have been upgraded to LED in most lots.  

• Large destratification fans have been added to Butler Hancock gym and Rec Center gyms 
and workout areas to reduce energy consumption of the HVAC systems. 

• Induction lighting was installed on Central Campus walkways. 

• Variable frequency drives are used to control most pump and fan motors on campus. 

• New construction is designed to achieve LEED gold rating.  
 

  



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

14 
 

Local Outreach and Communication Channels  
Engaging the community is critical to reaching the Energy Action Plan goals. Below are some of the ways 

that residents and businesses currently receive information. These communication channels will be helpful 

during implementation efforts. 

Xcel Energy, the City of Greeley, and local educational institutions will work together where appropriate to 

coordinate on relevant events that are hosted by each organization to support the goals of the Energy 

Action Plan. 

Table 2. Local Outreach 

Local Outreach Channels  
Digital Communications  

• City of Greeley Facebook 

• @greeleygov Twitter 

• @cityofgreeley Instagram 

• Targeted emails from Xcel Energy 

• Nextdoor 

• Press Releases 

• City of Greeley Events Calendar webpage 
 

• City of Greeley News Updates webpage 

• City of Greeley eNewsletter 

• Greeley Area Chamber of Commerce 
newsletter 

• City of Greeley Utility Bills (City Connect) 

Events  

• Friday Fest 

• Greeley Stampede 

• Greeley Blues Jam 

• Weld County Fair 

• Colorado Farm Show 

• Greeley Farmers Market 
  

• Greeley Business Energy Expo 

• Potato Day 

• Greeley Lights the Night Parade 

• Greeley Arts Picnic 

• Weld Project Connect 

• UNC Move-in Day 

Community Spaces for Collateral Distribution  

• Union Colony Civic Center 

• Island Grove Park facilities 

• Libraries 

• Greeley Family FunPlex 
 
 

• City of Greeley Park Shelters 

• Retirement Communities 

• University of Northern Colorado facilities 

• Greeley Recreation Center 

 

  

https://www.facebook.com/greeleygov/
https://www.instagram.com/cityofgreeley/?hl=en


GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

15 
 

Where Do We Want to Go?  
Our Energy Vision  
During the first planning workshop, team members worked together to craft an energy vision statement that 

expresses the Greeley’s energy intentions and values: 

  

Focus Areas and Goals 
Greeley will work to achieve its energy vision by establishing ambitious but achievable goals and 

implementing strategies across the three focus areas: residential, business, and municipal. 

Focus Area 1: Residential 
The residential sector in Greeley accounts for 87 percent of Xcel Energy premises, and 36 percent of 

electricity consumption, as discussed in the Baseline Energy Analysis section of this document. This 

customer group represents a significant opportunity to reduce energy consumption and save money in 

Greeley by impacting how residents view and consume energy. The aging housing stock in Greeley also 

represents a significant opportunity, as many homes are likely able to realize savings through efficiency 

upgrades.  

Historical Program Participation 

Figure 13 shows participation in each of Xcel Energy’s residential efficiency and renewable programs over 

the last three years. In 2018, there were 1,827 participants, representing 5 percent of the residential 

premises in Greeley. The planning team used this information to inform the residential focus area goals, 

primarily focusing on increasing participation rates and overall community energy savings. 

Note that programs like Home Energy Squad® present tremendous opportunities for Greeley residents to 

foray into energy efficiency improvements. For just $50, the Home Energy Squad will visit homes and make 

it more efficient for residents. Program offering include swapping out traditional bulbs for LEDs, installing a 

programmable thermostat, weather-stripping a drafty door, and installing energy-efficient showerheads and 

faucet aerators. Installation, labor, and materials are valued at $200. Spanish-speaking technicians are 

available. 

Greeley promotes a healthy and diverse economy and a high quality of life that is responsive to 

all its residents, businesses, and neighborhoods. Through Xcel Energy Partners in Energy, the 

community will create an affordable and reliable energy future based on increased residential, 

commercial, and industrial energy efficiency and alternative energy opportunities to improve 

economic health and stimulate growth. 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

16 
 

Goal 

Greeley’s residential goal is for 2,700 households to implement one energy efficiency or renewable energy 

measure annually. This equates to approximately 7.5 percent of residential premises or Greeley 

households participating in a residential DSM or renewable energy program through Xcel Energy. 

Achieving this goal would increase the residential 3-year average program participation (1,817 from 2016 to 

2018) by 50 percent.  

Impact 

Achieving these goals would result in approximately 598,000 kWh in electricity savings annually. This 

translates to approximately $81,000 in energy cost savings and 430 metric tons of carbon dioxide 

equivalent (MTCO2e) in greenhouse gas emissions reductions in the first year.   

Focus Area 2: Business 
As identified in the Baseline Energy Analysis section of this document, business facilities in Xcel Energy’s 

service territory represent only 13 percent of total Xcel Energy premises, but 64 percent of total electricity 

consumption in Greeley. There are about 5,000 Xcel Energy business premises in Greeley and relatively 

low participation in energy efficiency and renewable energy programs, representing a sizeable opportunity 

to achieve energy and cost savings. While this focus area presents challenges since businesses are busy 

and it can be difficult to connect with decision makers on energy matters, a simple and impactful targeted 

approach will allow this sector to benefit from and contribute to overall community energy efforts. This focus 

area includes strategies targeting large businesses and small and medium businesses. Outreach 

Figure 13. Three Year Residential Program Participation 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

17 
 

messaging will focus on cost savings through energy efficiency improvements as well as the co-benefits of 

efficiency upgrades such as improved comfort and reliability. 

Historical Program Participation 

Over the past 3 years an average of 202 commercial and industrial facilities in Greeley participated in Xcel 

Energy programs, representing about 4 percent of all businesses. This resulted in a 2 percent reduction in 

electricity use across the business community. Most participation is in the Small Business Lighting and 

Lighting Efficiency programs (Figure 14), and the relatively low levels of participation compared to the 

number of business present continued opportunities for further engagement. The 3-year average 

participation rates were used to inform the commercial and industrial focus area goals.  

 

Goal 

The City’s goal for business energy efficiency is to encourage 270 businesses to participate in an energy 

efficiency or renewable energy program through Xcel Energy each year. This is a 35% increase over the 3-

year average participation rate of about 200 businesses.  

Impact 

Achieving these goals would result in approximately 8.4 million kWh in electricity savings each year. This 

translates to approximately $700,000 in energy cost savings and 4,200 metric tons of carbon dioxide 

equivalent (MTCO2e) in greenhouse gas emissions reductions annually.   

Figure 14. Three Year Commercial Program Participation 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

18 
 

Focus Area 3: Educational Institutions 
The energy use and energy savings from the facilities at Greeley’s educational institutions is captured in 

commercial data, but these institutions play an integral role in developing a culture of conscientious use of 

resources in the community. This focus area included K-12 education as well as higher education 

institutions.  

Goals 

Develop outreach channels to students to 1) encourage energy efficiency behaviors, 2) increase 

understanding of electricity generation sources in Greeley, 3) establish internships to promote workforce 

development for energy efficiency and renewable energy fields, and 4) encourage student engagement 

with their community.  

Impact 

Quantifiable impact on energy use, cost savings, and greenhouse gas emissions will be captured in the 

data for residential and commercial efforts but working to develop a culture of resource conservation is 

invaluable in the long-term success of energy efficiency and renewable energy efforts.  

Focus Area 4: Municipal 
The City of Greeley already conserves energy by upgrading lighting to LED wherever feasible and 

incorporating energy efficiency into the design of new facilities. Although municipal facilities represent about 

3 percent of energy use in Greeley (Figure 7), there is an opportunity to lead by example within City 

facilities to showcase a commitment to energy conservation and innovative technologies. Further, energy 

savings in these facilities has an impact on all Greeley community members by saving and making efficient 

use of taxpayer dollars.  

Historical Program Participation 

Community facilities program participation is included in commercial participation, which is shown in Figure 

12. There are 274 total premises in the municipal category, including major and minor City of Greeley 

facilities such as the City Center, Island Grove, Greeley Urban Renewal Authority, water distribution, police, 

fire department, parks, and recreation. 

Informing staff about energy use in buildings, providing small reminder cues like light switch stickers, and 

sharing potential energy savings with facility employees can help encourage participation in programs and 

foster a culture of energy conservation for those who may have busy schedules or who feel their actions 

will not have any impact. 

Municipal Goals  

The City’s goal for municipal energy efficiency is to complete energy audits in targeted municipal facilities, 

and implement one energy measure in each targeted facility, as recommended by the energy audits.  

Impact 

Hitting these goals would reduce Greeley’s electricity consumption by 21,000 kWh in the first year, 

translating to approximately $1,500 energy cost savings and 12 MTCO2e in greenhouse gas emissions 

reductions. 

  



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

19 
 

How Are We Going to Get There?  
Strategies are specific actions Greeley will take to achieve its vision and goals. The Energy Action Team 

explored strategy concepts during its second and third workshops. To develop strategies, the team started 

by identifying one or two desired energy behaviors to encourage. Then they explored the benefits and 

reasons to participate in this behavior, as well as the top reasons and challenges preventing the behavior. 

Next, they brainstormed ways to address the identified challenges, examined what other opportunities and 

resources could be leveraged to communicate with target participants, and discussed other timing and 

resource considerations. With the ideas from the team discussions, the Partners in Energy facilitators 

drafted preliminary strategies for detailed review and refinement at the fourth workshop. Following the last 

workshop, the Partners in Energy facilitators worked with the Energy Action Team members individually to 

refine the strategies to address their comments and concerns. 

Note that the strategies in this Energy Action Plan will include implementation support from the Partners in 

Energy facilitation team for a period of 18 months following the Energy Action Plan adoption. A 

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the City of Greeley and Xcel Energy will detail the specific 

commitments of each entity and the implementation support provided. 

Residential Strategies 
For the residential sector, the desired behaviors identified included making smart energy choices and 

improvements at home (i.e., turning off the lights when not in use, upgrading to LED lights, and investing in 

high efficiency equipment when making upgrades). Benefits of engaging in these behaviors include lower 

energy costs, increased home comfort, and often longer lasting equipment. Reasons why residents may 

not engage in energy efficient behaviors or improvements include lack of time, lack of information or 

expertise, lack of financial resources to invest in home improvements, and for some rental or multi-family 

households, lack of control of their equipment. 

To address these challenges, the Energy Action Team identified the importance of making things simple to 

participate and providing no and low-cost resources and technical expertise. Xcel Energy resources to 

leverage to address these challenges include the Home Energy Squad program, an assortment of 

residential equipment rebates, and free giveaways like conservation kits and LED bulbs. Other resources 

and opportunities to leverage include engaging school-aged students and aligning energy efficiency with 

other utility programs and conservation efforts (e.g., the Mayor’s Water Challenge). 

The residential strategies developed to leverage these resources and maximize community participation 

and benefits include (1) general outreach at community events/activities and (2) targeted residential 

outreach campaigns. The details for these strategies are outlined on the following pages. 

  



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

20 
 

Strategy 1: Community Events & Activities 

Description 

This strategy is designed to leverage existing community events and/or school activities to provide 
information about energy efficiency and renewable energy resources that are available to community 
members. The Energy Action Team will share information, provide collateral and giveaways, answer 
questions, and encourage participants to learn more about energy opportunities. 

Targets 

• Conduct outreach at up to four community events or activities annually  

• Connect with at least 50 residents and engage 20 percent (10) in Xcel Energy programs with 
each event 

Scope 

The strategy begins with identifying community events or activities that are good candidates for energy 
outreach. Next, the team will recruit and confirm staffing for each event and develop materials to support 
event delivery. During events, the team will need to track metrics and interact with community members. 
Following events, the team will report metrics and share feedback to improve future events. 

Responsible Parties 

Leadership Roles: 

• City of Greeley 
o Lead event/activity selection.  
o Identify City of Greeley staff to support each event.   
o Support material development and finalization. 
o Support event/activity planning and delivery. 

• Partners in Energy 
o Support event/activity planning and delivery.  
o Lead material development and finalization. 
o Lead event volunteer training. 

• Xcel Energy 
o Support material development and finalization. 
o Support event planning and delivery. 

Potential Supporting Partners: 

• Weld County Extension, University of Northern Colorado, Greeley School District, Aims 
Community College, Atmos Energy, Poudre Valley REA  

o Identify events that might be suitable to support outreach 
o Support event/activity planning and delivery 

• Home Energy Squad® 
o Attend select events to share information about the offering and sign residents up for 

visits 

Timeline 

• Q4 2019 – Q2 2020 
o Identify potential events/activities for 2020 
o Confirm staffing and begin material development 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

21 
 

Strategy 1: Community Events & Activities 

• Q3-Q4 2020 
o Deliver event(s) 
o Identify events/activities for Q1-Q2 2021 

• Q1-Q2 2021 
o Deliver event(s) 
o Discuss approach/need for ongoing event/activity delivery after Partners in Energy 

implementation support is complete 

Resources 

• Event/activity materials (e.g., flyers, tabling supplies, speaking points, giveaway prizes, etc.) 

• Students and/or interns might be a potential option for event/activity staffing 

Outreach Channels 

• See Table 2. Local Outreach 

Measurement 

• Number of contacts made 

• Number of materials distributed 

• Enrollment for programs at/following events/activities 

 

Strategy 2: Targeted Residential Campaigns 

Description 

This strategy involves developing three tailored outreach campaigns to reach different sectors of 
Greeley’s residential community, including (1) cost-burdened homes including Spanish-speaking 
households, (2) students and rental households, and (3) households looking to fix up their homes and/or 
“green” their energy choices through renewable energy options.  

The outreach campaigns will highlight how the sector can engage in different energy programs and 
benefit from various energy efficiency and renewable energy activities. To the extent possible, the 
campaigns will be aligned with other utility rebates and the Mayor’s Water Challenge messaging and 
activities to maximize opportunities for residential conservation and renewable energy participation. 

Targets 

• Reach at least 2,500 cost burdened households and engage 125 (5 percent) in Xcel Energy 
programs. Targeted programs for this residential sector might include Home Energy Squad®, 
Energy Saving kits, and weatherization. Outreach materials will be provided in English and 
Spanish to include Spanish-speaking households.  

• Reach at least 7,500 rental and/or student households and engage 375 (5 percent) in Xcel 
energy programs. Targeted programs for this residential sector might include Home Energy 
Squad®, Saver’s Switch, and multi-family building efficiency improvements.  

• Reach all of Greeley’s 35,000 households and engage 2,160 (~6 percent) in Xcel Energy 
programs. Targeted programs for this residential sector might include Home Energy Squad® 
Plus, refrigerator and freezer recycling, high efficiency heating and cooling, and AC Rewards 
Windsource® and Solar Rewards. 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

22 
 

Strategy 2: Targeted Residential Campaigns 

Scope 

Each outreach campaign would include customized community collateral that tailors messaging to the 
unique energy challenges of the sector, identifies the Xcel Energy programs that are most 
applicable/relevant to the sector, and highlights the benefits of taking action. Collateral to be developed 
includes flyers, website text, newsletter content, and social media content. 

The Energy Action Team members will work with local organizations and trusted messengers to help 
disseminate materials and help spread the messages of the different outreach campaigns. 

Responsible Parties 

Leadership Roles: 

• City of Greeley 
o Lead outreach campaign delivery through municipal communications channels (website, 

newsletters, social media, etc.) 
o Help support collateral development and finalization 

• Partners in Energy 
o Lead collateral development and finalization 
o Support outreach campaign planning and delivery 

• Xcel Energy, Atmos Energy and Poudre Valley REA 
o Support collateral development and finalization 
o Support outreach campaign planning and delivery 

Potential Supporting Partners (support content development and help conduct outreach campaign 
through existing communication channels and activities): 

• Student & Rental Outreach 
o Higher Education Institutions (e.g., Aims, UNC) 
o Greeley-Evans School District 6 
o Weld County Extension 

• Cost-Burdened & Spanish Outreach 
o East Memorial community planning efforts 
o Energy Outreach Colorado 
o Catholic Charities – Weld County 
o Weld County Extension 
o Major employers (e.g., Swift, Leprino, etc.) 

• Home Improvement & Green Energy Outreach 
o City of Greeley Code Compliance and Building Department 
o Contractors 
o Homeowners Associations 
o Greeley-Evans School District 6 
o Weld County Extension 
o Mayor’s Water Challenge 
o Other local green or sustainability groups (e.g., Sierra Club, Northern Colorado 

Renewable Energy Society) 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

23 
 

Strategy 2: Targeted Residential Campaigns 

Timeline 

• Q4 2019: 
o Identify and confirm partners for outreach campaigns 
o Finalize schedule for delivery of each targeted campaign 
o Begin material and campaign development  

• Q1-Q2 2020:  
o Finalize materials and campaign details for campaign #1 
o Begin campaign #1 
o Plan campaign #2 and begin material development 

• Q3-Q4 2020 
o Finalize materials and campaign details for campaign #2 
o Begin campaign #2 
o Plan campaign #3 and begin material development 

• Q1-Q2 2021 
o Finalize materials and campaign details for campaign #3 
o Begin campaign #3 
o Discuss approach/need for ongoing campaign development and delivery after Partners 

in Energy implementation support is complete 

Resources 

• Event/activity materials (e.g., flyers, giveaway prizes, etc.) 

• Students and/or interns might be a potential option for outreach support 

Outreach Channels 

• See Table 2. Local Outreach 

Measurement 

• Number of contacts made for each targeted sector 

• Number of Conservation Kits distributed 

• Program participation in targeted programs 

 

  



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

24 
 

Business Strategies 
For the business sector, the desired behaviors identified included ensuring all equipment upgrades are 

energy efficient and companies invest in energy efficiency upgrades that make good business sense. 

Benefits of engaging in these behaviors include lower energy costs as well as increased reliability and 

productivity. Energy Action Team members identified a few reasons businesses may not make energy 

efficiency a focus of their business plan, which include lack of time to understand the benefits of efficiency 

upgrades and difficulty navigating the rebate process.  

The main strategy to overcoming barriers to participation is to better connect the business community to the 

support staff available at their utility providers, which at Xcel Energy includes the account manager for 

larger accounts and the business solutions center representatives for smaller businesses. The City will also 

coordinate events to allow businesses to learn about the benefits of energy efficiency upgrades from each 

other. During these events, businesses can share energy efficiency upgrades they have done and highlight 

not only the cost benefits of these projects, but also any co-benefits from the project such as improved 

customer experience, reduced maintenance costs, or increased productivity.  

 

Strategy 3: Annual Greeley Business Expo 

Description 

This strategy involves hosting a local event to highlight energy efficiency efforts of Greeley businesses 
and allow them to learn from each other. The event would be held at a local business that has a 
commitment to energy efficiency and could include a building tour to spotlight the hosts efficiency 
projects. There would also be one highlighted organization for that year that would give a short 
presentation about their project, lessons learned, co-benefits from project (e.g., increased production), 
and any next steps. Other organizations would be invited to have posters of their projects with some 
basic information: short project description, energy savings, incentives, co-benefits, and lessons learned 
(science fair style). While this event would focus on businesses in Greeley, there would be an open 
invitation to businesses in neighboring communities.  

Local contractors specializing in HVAC, envelope upgrades, solar installations, and other energy 
efficiency or renewable energy work would also be invited. This will allow local contractors to understand 
what utility rebate programs are available that may support their businesses and help contractor connect 
to businesses looking to complete projects.  

During the event there will be the large account manager(s) from Xcel Energy to engage with their 
accounts as well as representatives from the business solutions center to support unmanaged accounts. 
This event will be used to kick-off the year of outreach to a specific small business sector as described in 
Strategy 4. During the event, attendees would be asked to make a pledge to do something energy 
efficiency-related in the coming year.  

Targets 

• Engage 50 new businesses in efficiency programs including business energy analysis, 
commercial refrigeration efficiency, compressed air efficiency, cooling efficiency, lighting 
efficiency, recommissioning, custom efficiency, Solar Rewards®, and Windsource®.  

o Target 20 projects stemming from pledges at the event 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

25 
 

o The remaining 30 projects will develop throughout the year as a result of conversations 
between peers and with contractors following this event.  

Scope 

• Determine event date, time and venue. 

• Coordinate invitations through outreach channels identified.  

• Plan event activities, which may include: 
o Facility tour 
o Project highlight – 10-15-minute presentation 
o Networking and posters for other projects 
o Sign a pledge for coming year. Pledges will be displayed on the wall and have a 

thermostat showing the number of pledges – set a goal based on RSVP list.  
▪ Incentivize employees to do something at home (e.g. reimburse 5 percent of 

employees to do HomeEnergy Squad visit, provide LED bulbs to all employees)  
▪ Compressed air study 
▪ Small business lighting/energy audit (free) 
▪ Other: opportunity for custom project pledge 

o In the second year, recognize companies that fulfilled their pledge. 
o Appropriate Xcel Energy account representatives 

▪ Use the reps to extend invitations to large users 
o Table with all utility Xcel Energy rebates and small business center representatives 

▪ Choose a sector to highlight options and target event outreach (e.g., 
restaurants, offices) 

o Representatives from Poudre Valley REA and Atmos Energy with program and rebate 
information.  

• Hold the event. 

• Solicit feedback to inform future event planning. 

Responsible Parties 

Leadership Roles: 

• City of Greeley  
o Community Engagement: Lead outreach campaign delivery through municipal 

communications channels (website, newsletters, social media, etc.). 
o Facilities: Provide an example project poster based on recent efforts. 
o Economic Development and Business Licensing: Support outreach efforts. 

• Partners in Energy 
o Organize event logistics. 
o Support event delivery.  

• Xcel Energy, Atmos Energy and Poudre Valley REA 
o Provide outreach support for invitations 
o Representatives at the event to help customers with available opportunities 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

26 
 

Potential Site Hosts: 

• University of Northern Colorado 

• City of Greeley  

• WeldWerks Brewery 

• Leprino (not a Partners in Energy stakeholder but strong commitment to sustainability that other 
Energy Action Team members referenced)  

Timeline 

This event will be used to kick-off implementation phase. 

• January/February 2020 
o Choose event time/date/location 
o Identify outreach strategies 
o Send out invitations 
o Identify business to present featured efficiency project 
o Invite other businesses to create posters for their projects 

▪ Provide poster template  
▪ Request required data/info for poster development 

• March/April 2020 
o Send out event reminders 
o Create and print posters 
o Coordinate event logistics (food, chairs etc.) as needed 
o Hold event  

• Summer 2020 
o Review event 

▪ What went well 
▪ What should change next year 

o Outline schedule for next year’s event based on review including potential of ongoing 
support from City staff, Xcel Energy, Chamber, and other local business organizations. 

Resources 

• Need to explore venue options that will work for a group and accommodate a possible facilities 
tour.  

• Plan for tables, refreshments, collateral materials.  

• Explore potential door prizes or giveaways from utility providers. 

Outreach Channels 

• Xcel Energy: Large account managers  

• Chamber 

• DDA 

• City Twitter 

• City Facebook 

• Business license counter 

• Economic development department 

Measurement 

• Number of attendees 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

27 
 

• Number of pledges for action 

• Energy and cost savings from projects showcased 

 

  



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

28 
 

Strategy 4: Sector-based Small Business Outreach 

Description 

Partner with the Downtown Development Authority and Chamber of Commerce to incorporate 
presentations on benefits of energy efficiency and renewable energy projects at your business 
highlighting available rebates and other funding opportunities. The target will be to provide 3-4 
presentations in 2020 each focusing on a different business sector: 1) restaurants, 2) small offices, 3) 
retail, and 4) eco-friendly companies. The target audiences may be adjusted based on interest from the 
business community.  

Targets 

• Engage 20 small or medium-sized businesses in programs relevant to presentations (likely 
energy audits, small business lighting, lighting efficiency, motor and drive efficiency, 
Windsource®, and cooling efficiency).  

Scope 

• Identify existing or potential new DDA and/or Chamber activities or events that would be suitable 
for presentations. 

• Develop presentation content and supporting collateral materials. 

• Deliver presentations and follow-up with participating businesses and others in target sector. 

Responsible Parties 

• Partners in Energy  
o Develop presentation content and lead or support presentations. 

• Xcel Energy, Atmos Energy and Poudre Valley REA 
o Provide information on applicable programs and channels for business support. 
o Support presentation delivery. 

• Chamber and DDA 
o Provide meeting space and room on agenda for standing meetings.  
o Outreach to business community to attend presentations. 

Timeline 

Present schedule of presentations at the Greeley Business Expo in Spring 2020 and target one 
presentation per quarter.  

• Q1 2020: Restaurant Energy Efficiency 
o Low/no cost operational adjustments 
o Prioritizing equipment upgrades 
o How can energy efficiency improve customer and employee experience? 

• Q2 2020: Small Office Energy Efficiency 
o Low and no cost operational adjustments 
o Best investments 
o Employee engagement 
o How does energy efficiency affect productivity? 

• Q3 2020: Retail Energy Efficiency 
o Low/no cost operational adjustments 
o Best investments 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

29 
 

o How to use energy efficiency to improve customer experience and boost sales. 

• Q4 2020: Eco-Friendly Businesses 
o Renewable energy options 
o EV charging infrastructure 
o How to highlight your commitments to grow your brand. 

At the end of the year, evaluate the effectiveness of the presentations and feedback from the community. 
If good success and strong support for continuing the series, plan next year’s presentations and work on 
lining up presenters.   

Resources 

• Meeting space 

• Rebate and other program materials 

• Refreshments for meetings 

Outreach Channels 

• Chamber 

• DDA 

• City Twitter 

• City Facebook 

Measurement 

• Number of businesses contacted 

• Number of workshop participants 

 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

30 
 

Educational Institution Strategies 
The educational institution focus area includes not only energy efficiency upgrades to the institution’s 

facilities, but also engaging students to promote energy efficiency and renewable energy. Benefits of 

energy efficiency upgrades in facilities include utility cost savings and often an improved learning 

environment for students. Educational institutions are often long-term building occupants, so energy 

efficiency upgrades are often a longer-term benefit that reduce ongoing operating costs. The resulting utility 

cost savings can often be used to reinvest in student learning opportunities or other building upgrades. 

Major barrier for implementation of energy efficiency measures can be upfront capital and staff time 

required to identify efficiency upgrades. By taking advantage of energy audit programs provided by Xcel 

Energy, staff time to identify and vet possible projects is significantly reduced and financial assistance in 

the form of rebates is also available.  

Strategy 5: Student Engagement 

Description 

The educational institutions will outreach to students to build a culture of resource conservation in 
Greeley. This outreach might include information and kits to increase energy efficiency in their homes, 
involving campus groups in outreach events identified in this plan, and/or internship opportunities with 
energy efficiency or renewable energy partners.   

Targets 

• Engage 5,000 students in Energy Action Plan activities.   

Scope 

• Outreach to students at move-in day and/or orientation to provide information of activities they 
can do to support energy efficiency and renewable energy in Greeley. 

• Provide information about low-income programs to students through orientation or financial 
assistance offices.  

• Work with institutions to identify opportunities for Green Teams or other campus groups to 
support Energy Action Plan implementation, including supporting residential outreach as 
appropriate. 

• University of Northern Colorado: Provide campus tours of mechanical areas to educate 
students on complexities of HVAC and plumbing systems, where energy is used, and what 
measures have been implemented to improve energy efficiency. Possible partnership with 
Greeley School District. 

Responsible Parties 

• Xcel Energy Partners in Energy 
o Coordinate student orientation outreach and provide materials. 
o Coordinate campus teams and provide training on supporting plan initiatives. 

• Educational Institutions (UNC, AIMS, Greeley-Evans School District 6) 
o Provide outreach materials to students during orientation.  
o Identify on campus teams that may want to help with plan implementation.   

Timeline 

• Spring Semester 2020: Engage Student Groups 
o Identify student groups interested in supporting plan activities. 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

31 
 

Strategy 5: Student Engagement 

o Engage groups in expo planning. 
o Student outreach during spring events as applicable.  

• Fall Semester 2020: Student Outreach 
o Through strategy 1 outreach to new students about energy efficiency and renewable 

energy options in their new renal homes.  
o Engage on-campus teams to encourage participation. 

At the end of the year, evaluate the effectiveness of student engagement programs and revise the 
programs as needed for implementation next year.   

Resources 

• A Campus liaison for each participating institution will help ensure success.  

Outreach Channels 

• University of Northern Colorado 

• Greeley School District 

• AIMS Community College 

Measurement 

• Number of students engaged 

 

Strategy 6: Targeted Energy Audits 

Description 

Leverage Xcel Energy’s audit program to schedule and complete audits in the largest and most energy 
intensive buildings on the institution’s campus. Coordinate with facilities staff to develop a priority list of 
improvements per the audit reports. Once prioritized, staff will have the option to choose one energy 
efficiency project to complete each year and to keep a record of resulting savings to build success 
stories to share within and outside the community. Consider using local contractors to perform energy 
efficiency improvements to maximize local economic benefits and workforce growth. For facilities under 
50,000 square feet, Xcel Energy offers free energy audits to identify opportunities for energy savings. 

Targets 

• Each institution will perform 1 energy audit at a targeted facility. 

• Implement at least 1 identified energy efficiency measure in every targeted facility. 

Scope 

• Identify targeted facilities. 

• Schedule energy audits. 

• Prioritize energy project list based on results. 

• Identify funding for one priority project. 

• Establish a timeline for completion.  



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

32 
 

Strategy 6: Targeted Energy Audits 

Responsible Parties 

• Educational Institutions (UNC, AIMS, Greeley-Evans School District 6) 
o Identify targeted facilities for audits and make final determination of energy projects to 

implement. 

• Xcel Energy Partners in Energy 
o Support identification of targeted facilities list and support energy audit review for 

prioritization of opportunity and costs. 

Timeline 

• Coordination with Xcel Energy to begin in 2019 

• Target 2020 for audits 

Resources 

Xcel Energy offers on-site energy audits at varying costs dependent on building size to evaluate lighting, 
heating, cooling and motors & drives equipment and provides energy conservation opportunities and 
associated costs, rebates, savings and payback: 

• Buildings <50,000 square feet: Free 

• Buildings 50,000 – 150,000 square feet: $250 

• Buildings > 150,000 square feet: $500 

Funding to cover cost of audit and any capital improvements resulting from the audit is to be determined 
by each institution.  

University of Northern Colorado 

The University has used a combination of funding sources including performance contracting and 
reinvesting energy rebates to fund past energy efficiency efforts. Energy efficiency audits and the 
identified projects will likely be funded by similar mechanisms.  

Outreach Channels 

The University of Colorado has historically learned about energy efficiency opportunities through the 
following channels. These successful outreach channels will be used to share additional opportunities 
and outreach to other educational institution: 

• Xcel Energy account representative 

• ESCO’s funding (performance contracting) 

Measurement 

• Number of audits performed 

• Number of efficiency projects completed – savings will be captured in commercial energy data. 

 

  



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

33 
 

Municipal Strategies 
For the municipal sector, the desired behaviors identified include ensuring equipment upgrades as well as 

designs for the construction of new facilities are efficient and increasing the focus of highlighting past 

successes in efficiency through various media outlets. Benefits of engaging in these behaviors include 

lower energy and operating costs, decreased cost of installation through incentives, and increased 

recognition of the City of Greeley as an energy-conscious community. Reasons why municipalities may not 

engage in energy efficient behaviors or improvements include a time-intensive utility incentive process and 

lack of information or expertise navigating the rebate programs. 

To address these challenges, the Energy Action Team will involve key decision makers in conversations 

around energy efficiency and will seek opportunities to inform and use local contractors who are familiar 

with rebate processes and programs to facilitate energy efficiency implementation. Outlined below are 

strategies that the City of Greeley will focus on to improve energy efficiency in municipal buildings and 

facilities. 

Strategy 7: Targeted Energy Audits 

Description 

Leverage Xcel Energy’s audit program to schedule and complete audits in the largest and most energy 
intensive municipal facilities. Xcel Energy will work with City staff to develop a priority list of 
improvements per the audit reports. Once prioritized, the City will aim to complete at least one efficiency 
project per facility. They will keep a record of resulting savings to build case studies and success stories 
to share within and outside the community – ideally these savings will be leveraged to complete other 
municipal energy improvement projects as well. The City will also consider using local contractors to 
perform energy efficiency improvements to maximize local economic benefits and workforce growth. 

Additionally, Xcel Energy will partner with the City of Greeley through their Strategic Energy 
Management Program to coordinate project implementation through engagement with City staff to help 
Greeley overcome challenges associated with efficiency projects. This program offers rebate assistance 
to ensure that rebate opportunities are captured and benefits to the City are maximized. In addition, for 
facilities under 50,000 square feet, Xcel Energy offers free energy audits to identify opportunities for 
energy savings. 

Targets 

• Perform 1 energy audit for each targeted municipal property in Greeley. 

• Implement at least 1 identified energy efficiency measure in every targeted facility. 

Scope 

• Identify targeted City of Greeley facilities. 

• Schedule energy audits at targeted facilities. 

• Prioritize energy project list based on results. 

• Choose top projects to implement each year. 

• Coordinate with local contractors to complete projects and take advantage of Xcel Energy 
program opportunities. 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

34 
 

Strategy 7: Targeted Energy Audits 

• Coordinate with local educational institutions to engage student population in an opportunity to 
learn and gain experience in performing audits by including interested students on audit 
walkthroughs, calculations, etc. 

Responsible Parties 

• City of Greeley  
o Identify targeted City of Greeley facilities for audits, and schedule audits and complete 

the energy audits.  
o Once audits are complete, City of Greeley to make final determination of energy projects 

to implement.   
o Track savings from energy efficiency improvement projects to inform case study 

development. 

• Partners in Energy  
o Support identification of targeted facilities list and support energy audit review for 

prioritization of opportunity and costs. 
o Support case study development to showcase improvements at City facilities. 

• Xcel Energy  
o Utilize the Strategic Energy Management Program to partner with City staff on energy 

saving opportunities, facilitating rebate opportunities. 

Timeline 

• Coordination with Xcel Energy is ongoing 

• Q1 2020: Audit applications and scheduling 

• Q2-4 2020: Audit completion and review 

Resources 

Xcel Energy offers on-site energy audits at varying costs dependent on building size to evaluate lighting, 
heating, cooling and motors & drives equipment and provides energy conservation opportunities and 
associated costs, rebates, savings and payback: 

• Buildings <50,000 square feet: Free 

• Buildings 50,000 – 150,000 square feet: $250 

• Buildings > 150,000 square feet: $500 

For smaller buildings, Xcel Energy offers recommissioning tune-up audits, identifying low- and no-cost 
measures for existing systems, dependent on building size: 

• Buildings 5,000 – 25,000 square feet: $250 

• Buildings 25,001 – 50,000 square feet: $500 

Partners 

• Xcel Energy 

• Partner with educational institutions in support of Strategy 5 

Outreach Channels 

• City Social Media 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

35 
 

Strategy 7: Targeted Energy Audits 

• City eNewsletter 

• Other news sources, PR 

Measurement 

• Metered building energy data used to track impact and verify savings 

• Number of audits performed 

 

Strategy 8: New Construction Process Alignment 

Description 

Develop a well-defined process for City staff to follow from proposal to occupancy to better integrate 
energy efficiency and renewable energy program and rebate opportunities into new development 
projects. Xcel Energy offers project development assistance and coordination and new construction 
rebates at various milestones in the process. City staff, Xcel Energy, community members and 
prospective businesses in Greeley will benefit from unified messaging and process alignment through 
this strategy. 

With timely and ongoing coordination, project electric capacity concerns can be addressed upfront to 
inform preliminary development proposals. Once project design begins, Xcel Energy can provide several 
resources along the way to help developers save energy and build resiliency over the life of the project. 

Targets 

• All major development proposals and projects receive information about Xcel Energy programs 
as well as other applicable rebate programs from Atmos Energy and Poudre Valley REA. 

Scope 

• Develop and provide a summary of coordination points between Xcel Energy and City of Greeley 
during development and construction processes. 

• Identify and train City of Greeley staff on Xcel Energy rebate program opportunities at various 
process phases. 

Responsible Parties 

• City of Greeley 
o Coordinate with Xcel Energy at ongoing utility coordination and/or key site coordination 

meetings.  
o Identify and communicate development opportunities and proposals to Xcel Energy on 

an ongoing basis. 

• Partners in Energy 
o Support and/or facilitate training to City of Greeley on Xcel rebate program 

opportunities. 

• Xcel Energy Representatives 
o Lead training and outreach for City staff.   
o Assist City of Greeley on rebate program identification. 

Timeline 

• Q4 2019 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

36 
 

o Begin coordination by utilizing existing monthly utility coordination and/or key site 
coordination meetings. 

• Q1 2020 
o Research and discuss coordination opportunities and potential process improvements. 

• Q2 2020 
o Provide a summary of development/construction coordination points between Xcel 

Energy and City of Greeley. 
o Conduct City of Greeley staff training if necessary. 

Outreach Channels 

• City of Greeley website 

• Utility coordination and development review meetings 

 

  



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

37 
 

How Are We Going to Stay on Course?  
The Energy Action Team has worked hard to develop 

ambitious and achievable goals that align with the 

energy vision. To achieve the targets and energy goals 

outlined in this plan, the City of Greeley and its partners 

identified in the strategies above will work to maintain 

consistent and clear communication among themselves 

and with the community at large. Each strategy will 

have sub-teams that will communicate regularly to work 

out the details of implementation, carry through on 

identified actions, and share progress and results. In the 

first months of implementation, the Energy Action Team 

will meet as a large group via online meetings to ensure 

effective group coordination and communication.  

Operational Actions and Tracking 
Partners in Energy staff will track Xcel Energy program participation data and associated electricity savings 

for Greeley on a bi-annual basis (typically February and August) and will report out on quantifiable 

progress. Once a year (typically February) the Partners in Energy staff will provide a summary of total 

electricity consumption for the community.  

Each strategy leader or team also will track supplemental quantitative and qualitative information about 

implementation, such as number of activities, number of materials distributed, event dates, and estimated 

participants, etc.  

Communication and Reporting 
The City of Greeley and other community organizations have established communication channels as 

outlined previously in this plan. The Energy Action Team and Partners in Energy facilitators will coordinate 

the use of the various communication channels to support the strategies with outreach efforts, updates, 

progress, and successes.  

At the end of the implementation support period, the Partners in Energy team will provide a summary of the 

progress made, including quantitative and qualitative estimates of impacts on energy goals. 

Changing Course: Corrective Action 
Even though this Energy Action Plan is designed for greatest impact over the next 18 months, the residual 

effect and momentum gained by showcasing efficiency, raising awareness, and leveraging resources will 

have long-term positive implications. An effective energy plan is cyclical in nature (see Figure 15). In 

addition, the nature of implementation requires staging, flexibility, and course adjustments when necessary 

to be successful and to sustain progress. To ensure this plan remains on track, the Energy Action Team will 

review bi-annual tracking information and compare it against any supplemental strategy tracking metrics 

and information to assess whether the efforts appear to be making an impact. 

To accommodate the fluid nature of action and implementation and learn from experience early in the 

process, the regularly scheduled team meetings as well as the bi-annual data check-ins will be a forum for 

Figure 15. Actions and Tracking 

STRATEGIES

IMPLEMENTATION

MEASUREMENT & 
REPORTING



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

38 
 

agreeing on course adjustments or new approaches necessary to hit plan targets. Any adjustments will be 

documented and shared with the broader group and community as they occur. 

During the implementation period, the best process for obtaining involvement from team members will be 

determined and lined up with appropriate cycles. These may include budget cycles, school calendars, start 

of the heating season, etc. As these cycles and the appropriate review points in these cycles are 

incorporated, there may be different times of the year that specific elements may change, and at a 

minimum there should be at least one time every year for the major stakeholders to review progress, weigh 

in, and suggest changes to direction. 

Sharing Progress 
Strategies outlined in this plan have methods for measuring and recognizing success; however, it will be 

important to let the wider community know how things are progressing and to recognize the collaborative 

efforts of those involved in hitting the plan targets. At critical milestones, the City of Greeley and Xcel 

Energy will publish updates on progress, share successes, and congratulate participants and partners 

through various communication channels. 

Beyond the Plan Horizon  
Looking forward beyond the plan horizon, it is recommended that Greeley reassess the energy efficiency 

goals and successes achieved over the implementation period. Future updates to this plan may be 

necessary as goals are achieved and new energy opportunities and ideas emerge. Communities with a 

successful track record of implementing their goals are welcome and encouraged to apply to future 

Partners in Energy offerings if new community goals or opportunities arise. 

  



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

39 
 

Appendix 1: Glossary of Terms 
Use whichever appendices are appropriate. The following is a preliminary glossary. 

Community Data Mapping: A baseline analysis of energy data in a geospatial (map) format across the 

community. 

Demand Side Management (DSM): Modification of consumer demand for energy through various 

methods, including education and financial incentives. DSM aims to encourage consumers to decrease 

energy consumption, especially during peak hours or to shift time of energy use to off-peak periods, such 

as nighttime and weekend. 

Direct Installation: Free energy-saving equipment installed by Xcel Energy or other organization for 

program participants that produces immediate energy savings. 

Energy Action Plan: A written plan that includes an integrated approach to all aspects of energy 

management and efficiency. This includes both short- and long-term goals, strategies, and metrics to track 

performance.  

Greenhouse gas (GHG): Gas in the atmosphere that absorbs and emits radiant energy within the thermal 

infrared range (primary GHGs include water vapor, carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide, and ozone); 

GHGs are associated with affecting climate change. 

Goals: The results toward which efforts and actions are directed. There can be a number of objectives and 

goals outlined to successfully implement a plan.  

HOA: Home owners’ association. 

HVAC: Heating, ventilation and air conditioning. 

LED: light-emitting diode. 

kW: kilowatt (1,000 watts); a unit of electric power.  

kWh (kilowatt-hour): A unit of electric consumption 

MMBtu: One million British Thermal Units; a measure of energy content in fuels. 

MTCO2e:  Metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalent (MTCO2 Eq.); measure used to compare the emissions 

from different greenhouse gases based on their global warming potential (GWP). The carbon dioxide 

equivalent for a gas is derived by multiplying the tons of the gas by its associated GWP. 

MW: Megawatt (1 million watts); a unit of electric power. 

Premise: A unique identifier for the location of electricity or natural gas service. In most cases, it is a facility 

location. There can be multiple premises per building and multiple premises per individual debtor. 

Recommissioning: An energy efficiency service focused on identifying ways that existing building systems 

can be tuned-up to run as efficiently as possible. 

RFP: Request for proposals (solicitation of services). 



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

40 
 

Solar Garden: Shared solar array with grid-connected subscribers who receive bill credits for their 

subscriptions. 

Solar PV: Solar cells/panels that convert sunlight into electricity (convert light, or photons, into electricity, or 

voltage). 

Subscription: An agreement to purchase a certain amount of something in regular intervals. 

Therm: A unit of heat energy (natural gas). 

Weatherization: Insulation, air sealing, weather stripping, etc., that improve the building envelope. 

  



GREELEY ENERGY ACTION PLAN 

41 
 

Appendix 2: Implementation Memorandum of Understanding 
To be added for City Council review and hearing. 


	STAFF REPORT - PUD2019-0010 - FS6 Prelim  Final PUD Rezone_9.10.19.pdf
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	 EH-2.4 Land Use – Promote land use decisions that support walkability and improve access to basic needs, such as neighborhood markets or grocery stores, parks and natural areas, as well as medical and personal services. Support access to goods and s...
	 EH-4.2 School Siting – Collaborate with the school districts in developing long-range school siting plans.  Encourage new schools on sites that are:
	o Located near the population they are intended to serve:
	o Co-locate with or near existing facilities and amenities that provide opportunities for shared use and capital improvements, such as City parks;
	o Separated from potential land use hazards or nuisances;
	o Served by transportation options (e.g. roadways, transit, bike path and sidewalks) that provide safe access to and from school; and
	o Sites so as to minimize impacts on the surrounding neighborhood or area and existing transportation network.
	 GC-1.3 Adequate Public Facilities – Restrict development to the Adequate Public Facilities Area (APFA) except where the developer provides the equivalent level, or cash-in-lieu at a rate determined by the City, to install infrastructure that would o...
	 EH-2.4 Land Use – Promote land use decisions that support walkability and improve access to basic needs, such as neighborhood markets or grocery stores, parks and natural areas, as well as medical and personal services. Support access to goods and s...
	 EH-4.2 School Siting – Collaborate with the school districts in developing long-range school siting plans.  Encourage new schools on sites that are:
	o Located near the population they are intended to serve:
	o Co-locate with or near existing facilities and amenities that provide opportunities for shared use and capital improvements, such as City parks;
	o Separated from potential land use hazards or nuisances;
	o Served by transportation options (e.g. roadways, transit, bike path and sidewalks) that provide safe access to and from school; and
	o Sites so as to minimize impacts on the surrounding neighborhood or area and existing transportation network.
	 GC-1.3 Adequate Public Facilities – Restrict development to the Adequate Public Facilities Area (APFA) except where the developer provides the equivalent level, or cash-in-lieu at a rate determined by the City, to install infrastructure that would o...

	Greeley Sports Bar Staff Report and Attachments.pdf
	PUD2019-0005_Staff Report_Greeley Sports Bar.pdf
	Attachment A - Vicinity and Zoning Map
	Attachment B - Project Narrative
	Attachment C - Site Plan
	Attachment D - Building Elevations & Materials
	Attachment E - Comparison
	Attachment F - Minor Subdivision

	2600 36th Ave Rezone Staff Report and Attachments.pdf
	2600 36th Avenue Rezone Staff Report.pdf
	Attachment A - Zoning-Vicinity Map
	Page 1

	Attachment B - Photo Aerial
	Page 1

	Attachment C - Narrative
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5

	Attachment D - Property Rezone Boundary Map
	Page 1

	Attachment E - Site Analysis Map
	Page 1

	Attachment F - Zoning Suitability Map
	Page 1

	Attachment G - Notification Boundary Map
	Page 1


	Blank Page



